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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Goldstone
Investment Group Limited (“Goldstone” or the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

2020 is one of the most difficult years in world history as the COVID-19
pandemic severely harmed the world economy and people’s lives. For our
Group, however, 2020 has been a year of great change and improvement.
The new management team gradually joined Goldstone since August
2020, bringing with them extensive experiences in the investment market.
Under the leadership of the new Board and with the joint efforts of all
staff, Goldstone has been transformed to a positive direction and moved
out from past difficulties, its operating loss significantly reduced by
16.9% through the large-scale restructuring and the cautious cost control
measures carried out since August. At the same time, the management
team has prepared for series of fund raising under the tremendously
challenging financial environment, thus laying a solid foundation for future
growth of the Company.

During the year under review, the invested projects of the Company
included (1) E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd., a company principally engaged
in the provision of Chinese e-learning platforms. Chinese e-learning
platforms are available in most of the primary schools in Singapore and its
coverage is gradually expanding into other Asian Pacific regions; and (2)
the listed equity investment held by the Company.

Looking forward, although the damaging impact of COVID-19 is still
haunting the world, it also spawned new technologies and business
models, and brought new opportunities to the investment market that
is expected to remain challenging in 2021. The new management team,
under the new situation, will try to seize all possible opportunities brought
by the changes to optimize the Company’s development potential. The
investment strategy of the Company is to seek risk diversification through
investment in a diverse range of products comprising different types of
assets, and to carry out the investment by seizing opportunities presented
by different industries and markets, in order to maximize investment
returns.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to the shareholders, management team, staff and business partners of
the Company for their unremitting dedications. The management will
continue to go all out to conquer all obstacles for achieving the best results
so as to reward the shareholders for their support to Goldstone.

Dr. XIAO Yanming
Chairlady

31 March 2021

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R oA

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at a special general meeting on 23 October 2020, the
Company’s English name has changed from “Eagle Ride Investment
Holdings Limited” to “Goldstone Investment Group Limited” and the
Company’s Chinese name has changed from “ & H & &= AR A "
to "&£ AREEEAR QA" with effect from 23 October 2020. The
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name of the Company was
issued by the Registry of Companies, Cayman Islands on 23 October 2020.
The Certificate of Registration of Change of Corporate Name of Non-
Hong Kong Company confirming registration of the Company under the
name of “Goldstone Investment Group Limited & A& EE AR A7) "
under Part XI of the Companies Ordinance was issued by the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong on 12 November 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Goldstone Investment Group Limited is an investment holding company.
The Company’s investment instruments are to be made in the form of
investment fund or equity securities or equity related securities or debt-
related instruments in listed and unlisted companies. The investments
normally are to be made in enterprises which are established within their
respective fields. The Company may also subscribe for the funds mainly
includes equity investment funds, hedge funds, quantitative funds, index
funds, securities and futures investment funds, Pre-IPO cornerstone funds,
strategic investment and M&A funds, digital currency funds, art investment
funds and gold funds.

Year 2020 was a year full of challenges, difficulties and unpredictability.
The global financial markets were impacted by COVID-19 pandemic
severely across the stock, bond and commodity (including crude oil and
gold) markets. The public health crisis has deeply plagued Hong Kong's
economy in 2020, which contracted by 6.1% for 2020 as a whole, the
sharpest annual decline on record. The economic turmoil associated with
the COVID-19 pandemic has been regarded as the major cause for the
economic downturn with a severe blow to the labor market and business
activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although the global economy is emerging from the collapse triggered by
COVID-19, the recovery is likely to be subdued in 2021, and global GDP
is projected to remain well below its pre-pandemic trend for a prolonged
period. However, China’s continued economic recovery is expected with
lower unemployment rates, rising consumer confidence and offline
consumption to return to normal in 2021, together with lightened US-
China trade conflict. The pandemic has changed the lives globally, it also
spawned new technologies and business models. All these contributed
to cautious sentiment among investors, and created a challenging but
promising market environment for the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company continued its
investments in both listed and unlisted equity securities and other related
financial assets. As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s investment
portfolio was diversified and across different business sectors including
education and investment in securities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s investment
performances were as follows:

1. Net unrealised loss arising on fair value changes of unlisted equity
investment was approximately HK$5,794,000 (2019: unrealised loss
approximately HK$4,767,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The net loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$36,302,000, a decrease of approximately HK$7,372,000 from the loss
of approximately HK$43,674,000 in the last financial year.

The decrease in loss position was mainly attributable to the decrease in
administrative cost and finance costs of approximately HK$2,844,000 and
HK$4,614,000 respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E T wm M AT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$168,000 (2019: approximately HK$160,000). The
Company is fully aware of the financial position and financial performance
of the reporting period.

The Board are of the opinion that the Company will have sufficient
financial resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall due for at
least the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period, after
taking into consideration of the following:

1. In January 2021, the Company placed total of 90,140,000 new
ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.28 per share to six independent
third parties. The net proceeds was approximately HK$24,400,000.
The net proceeds raised will be used for general working capital of
the Group.

2. InJanuary 2021, the Company issued 1-year, 8% coupon unsecured
nonredeemable convertible bonds at an initial conversion price
of HKO.3 of an aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$50,010,000 to six independent third parties.

The net proceeds raised of approximately HK$30,500,000 and
HK$19,000,000 will be used for general working capital and
repayment of borrowings repayable within one year of the Group
respectively.

3. In February 2021, the Company allotted a total of 270,520,000 new
shares under general mandate, representing approximately 12.50%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
issue of new shares at HK$0.33 per share to an independent third
party, Dragon Synergy Holdings Limited which is wholly owned by
Ms. Liu Yutong. Immediately after completion of the Placing, Dragon
Synergy Holdings Limited has become a substantial Shareholder of
the Company. The net proceeds was approximately HK$88.400,000.
The net proceeds raised will be used for general working capital of
the Group.

4. In March 2021, the Group and one of the Group’s bondholder
entered into a letter of intent whereby the bondholders expressed
their intentions to subscribe for, and the Company intended to issue
and allot preference shares to replace the corporate bond due to
those bondholder in the amount of approximately HK$10,000,000;
and
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Management Discussion and Analysis

5. The Group will seek to obtain additional new financial support
including but not limited to borrow loans, issuing additional equity or
debt securities.

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months from the
reporting date taking into account the impact of the above measures,
the directors of the Company believe that the Group will have sufficient
cash resources to satisfy its future working capital and other financing
requirements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
current year (2019: nil).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets) as at 31 December 2020
was 2,323.51% (2019: 516.12%).

The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital and to support the Group’s
stability and growth.

The directors of the Company actively and regularly reviews and manages
the Group’s capital structure, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group, to ensure optimal shareholders’ returns. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may issue new shares, raise new debts or sells assets to reduce debt.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R oA

LITIGATION

On 23 April 2019, the Company, and an independent third party
(“Landlord”) entered into a tenancy agreement, pursuant to which a
property was let to the Company for office use for a fixed term from
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2022.

On 29 May 2020, the Company received a writ of summons with a
statement of claim issued in the District Court of Hong Kong by the
Landlord against the Company for overdue rent, management fee and
interest during the period from December 2019 to May 2020, and further
claimed the rent and management fee from 1 June 2020 to 31 March
2022 (the end of contract) and rate from 1 July 2020 to 31 March 2022
(the end of contract).

The directors of the Company are of the view that the litigations have
no significant impact on the Group’s financial position and its operating
result for the year ended 31 December 2020 as the accrued rental and
management fee have already been recorded in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have any contingent
liabilities (2019: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, no margin facility (2019: nil) from a
regulated securities broker was granted to the Group under which financial
assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$448,000 (2019: approximately nil)
were treated as collateral for the facilities granted. No margin facility has
been utilised by the Group at 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Company has foreign currency investments in financial assets, which
expose it to foreign currency risk. The Group is mainly exposed to the
effects of fluctuation of the US$ and the S$. As the HK$ is pegged to
the US$, the Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates
between the HK$ and the US$ to be insignificant. Accordingly, their
fluctuation is excluded from the sensitivity analysis. If the exchange rate
of HK$ against S$ has been increased/decreased by 5% (2019: 5%),
the Group’s loss for the year would have been decreased/increased by
approximately HK$227,000 (2019: approximately HK$545,000).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020 the Group had 4 (2019: 3) employees. The
total employees remuneration was approximately HK$3,457,000 (2019:
approximately HK$3,624,000) for the current financial year. The Group’s
emolument policies are formulated based on the performance of individual
employees and is reviewed regularly every year.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward into the Year of 2021, the operating environment for
financial markets is expected to remain challenging. The outbreak of the
global virus has adversely impact on the investment market and thus many
economic and political uncertainties remain. Capital markets in 2021 are
likely to be volatile.

The Company will continue to adopt and maintain a prudent investment
approach to capture attractive investment opportunities as and when
they arise. The Company will continue fully leveraging its strong market
analytical capability and carefully identify the market trend focusing on
high-tech, new economy, bio-medicine, new energy, real estate, and
education and culture as the core investment areas. The Company intends
to initiate the establishment of the SPAC (Special Purpose Acquisition
Company) in 2021 to acquire outstanding targets in the health industry.
The Company is committed to adopting the rigorous investment attitudes
and professional investment methods, through a flexible investment
strategy to bring the maximum returns for all the shareholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors

i

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. XIAO Yanming, aged 58, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 August 2020 and re-designated as an
Executive Director of the Company on 2 December 2020. She has been
the Chairlady and CEO of Hong Kong Cornucopiae Asset Management
Limited since 2013. Previously, Dr. Xiao was Managing Director of UBS
Wealth Management in Hong Kong and had worked as senior banker
at Credit Suisse, Citi Bank and other financial institutions prior to that.
She was an independent non-executive director of Xinjiang La Chapelle
Fashion Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with
stock code: 6116) until 14 December 2020. Dr. Xiao received a law degree
from China Foreign Affairs University, and MA and Ph.D. from Harvard
University in the US. She is the Type 1, Type 4 and Type 9 License Holder
and Responsible Officer of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TUNG Shu Sun, aged 73, was appointed a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 1 November, 2013. He used to be the chief executive
officer of APAC. APAC is principally engaged in investment holding
focusing on the energy sector and high growth private investments. Mr.
Tung was the executive director and the executive deputy managing
director of COSCO International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 517, from December 1997 to July 2003
and has extensive experiences in corporate management, management of
investment projects as well as management and mergers and acquisitions
of listed companies. Mr. Tung joined China Ocean Shipping (Group)
Company since 1968 and served in sea transportation, shipbuilding,
container transportation, external affairs and administrative management
as well as real estate and infrastructure. He is a Senior Economist.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Ms. LI Ye, aged 38, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 7 October 2020. She was the co-founder of Vallyn Culture
Group Co., Ltd. from July 2017 to August 2020, and was responsible
for brand cooperation with companies in the TMT field. Previously, she
worked in the Internet industry for seven years and joined sina.com in
2007. After that, she served as the deputy director of media Weibo
operation, responsible for global media cooperation and media Weibo
management. She served as the corporate development and strategy
director of Meiah Entertainment Group Ltd. from July 2015, responsible
for the group brand management, Internet platform cooperation and
investment analysis of new media projects. Ms. Li graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology with a Master of Art in 2007.

Mr. WONG Tsz Wai, aged 35, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 August 2020. He serves as a Director of
Cornucopiae Asset Management Limited from October 2020 to now,
responsible for the fund management and the asset management.
He served as the Associate Director of the capital market department
of Haotian International Securities Co., Ltd. from February 2018 to
August 2020, responsible for institutional investment business, focusing
on listed companies, asset management, capital markets, and equity
investment business development. He served as the senior manager of
the wealth management department of Chinalin Securities (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd from December 2016 to January 2018, responsible for private
banking, asset management, private equity funds, and high-end client
business development. He served as the investment manager of Fulbright
Securities Co., Ltd from August 2013 to November 2016, responsible for
client investment portfolio management and stock analysis. Mr. Wong
graduated from Monash University, Australia with a degree in Commerce
(Banking and Finance) in December 2007 and obtained an MBA in Finance
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2015. Mr. Wong
is the Type 1 and Type 9 License Holder of the Securities and Future
Commission of Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors

i

Mr. LI Kim Fung, aged 54, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 September, 2020. Currently, he is also a
senior advisor of Credit Intelligence Limited, a listed company in Australia.
He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of the China Aviation
Flying Shark Global Credit Fund that under AVIC Capital International
Holding Co., Ltd. From August 2017 to August 2020, Mr. Li served as the
executive director and chief executive officer of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 620), a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Prior to that, Mr. Li worked for China Travel
Service (Group) Co., Ltd., a central enterprise, and its subsidiaries for 19
years. During this period, he was sent to the United States to serve as the
vice president of US China Travel Service Investment Co., Ltd., and one of
the founders of China Travel Service Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has
worked in various multinational banks and investment banks, responsible
for corporate financing, mergers and acquisitions, listing and investment
management in the Greater China region. He holds postgraduate
certificate in Professional Accounting from City University of Hong Kong
and master of business administration from University of Exeter in the
United Kingdom. He is currently the chairman of Industry Development
Committee of Hong Kong Society of Artificial Intelligence and Robotics
and the founding member of China Mergers and Acquisitions Association
(Hong Kong) Limited.

Ms. WANG Zhonggqiu, aged 58, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 14 September, 2020. She was
the Vice General Manager and General Manager of China Overseas
Engineering (Macau) Company Limited from February 2000 to December
2018 and the General Manager of China Railway Group Macau Company
Limited from October 2014 to December 2018. Prior to that, she was the
Deputy Director of CEO Office and Vice General Manager of Enterprise
Management Department of China Overseas Engineering Group Company
from December 1991 to February 2000. She received a Bachelor degree
from Jilin University and she is a Senior Economist.
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest, aged 53, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 December, 2020. He has
over 25 years of experience in venture capital, corporate finance, business
development and general management. He is the president and group
chief financial officer of KVB Holdings Limited (“KVB"). Mr. Wong is
an independent non-executive director of Renheng Enterprise Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3628) since 20 October 2011, Progressive Path
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1581) since 15 November 2016 and
Aidigong Maternal & Child Health Limited (formerly known as Common
Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited) (Stock Code: 286)
since 20 September 2017, the shares of such companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange. During the past three years, Mr. Wong was also
an independent non executive director of Legend Strategy International
Holdings Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 1355) until 6 September
2018, China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (Stock Code:
8158) until 21 August 2019 and HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(now known as China Wood International Holding Co., Limited) (Stock
Code: 1822) until 27 July 2020; and was an executive director, the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of KVB Kunlun Financial Group
Limited (now known as CLSA Premium Limited) (Stock Code: 6877) until
12 August 2019, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Moreover, during the past three years, Mr. Wong was a non-executive
director of Adamas Finance Asia Limited (AIM Stock Code: ADAM) until 3
June 2019, this company is listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong obtained a master’s degree in management from Said Business
School of Oxford University, a bachelor’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong (“HKU"), a master’s degree of science
in investment management from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a master’s degree of science in electronic engineering
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was admitted as
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He was admitted as a
chartered financial analyst of the Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts.
He is a current member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute. He is also acting the deputy chairman of the HKU Convocation,
the court member of The University of Hong Kong, and the chairman of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. During the Year,
the Group is principally engaged in the investments in the securities of
listed and unlisted companies and other related financial assets.

The Company’s investment instruments will be made in the form of
investment fund or equity securities or equity-related securities or debt-
related or instruments in listed and unlisted companies. The investments
will normally be made in enterprises which are established in their
respective fields. The Company may also subscribe for the funds mainly
includes equity investment funds, hedge funds, quantitative funds, index
funds, securities and futures investment funds, Pre-IPO cornerstone funds,
strategic investment and M&A funds, digital currency funds, art investment
funds and gold funds.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year under review
and a discussion on the Group’s future development are set out in the
Chairman’s Statement on page 5 of this report and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 11. These discussions form part of
this director’s report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 58.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year.

FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the furniture, fixtures and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHARE CAPITAL

The net proceeds from the placing was used as general working capital of
the Group during the Year.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the reserves available for distribution to
shareholders pursuant to the Cayman Islands Companies Law amounted
to HKSNil.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

A substantial portion of the Group’s income is derived from the Group’s
investments and bank deposits and thus the disclosure of information
regarding customers would not be meaningful. The Group has no major
suppliers which require disclosure.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the
Company’s own securities.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Director:

Dr. XIAO Yanming, Chairlady (appointed as non-executive director on
18 August 2020 and re-designated as an Executive Director and
Chairlady on 2 November 2020)

Mr. CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement (resigned on 1 November 2020)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. TUNG Shu Sun

Ms. LI Ye (appointed on 7 October 2020)

Mr. WONG Tsz Wai (appointed on 18 August 2020)
Mr. HU Haisong (resigned on 18 August 2020)

Mr. DANG Yin Liang (resigned on 7 October 2020)
Mr. DING Shiguo (resigned on 18 August 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAl Kim Fung (appointed on 1 September 2020)

Ms. WANG Zhonggiu (appointed on 14 September 2020)

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest (appointed on 1 December 2020)

Mr. GUI Shengyue (resigned on 15 June 2020)

Mr. WANG Xianzhang (deceased on 14 August 2020)

Mr. PHAISALAKANI Vichai (re-appointed on 23 January 2020 and
resigned on 1 December 2020)

According to Article 87(3) of the Article of Association of the Company,
Dr. Xiao Yanming, Mr. Wong Tsz Wai, Ms. LI Ye, Mr. LAl Kim Fung, Ms.
WANG Zhonggiu and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest who were appointed as
director after the Company’s last annual general meeting, shall hold office
until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, and being
eligible, offer himself for re-election as Director of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 88(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Tung Shu Sun shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election of Directors of the Company.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmations from each of
its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their independence
during the year and all of them are still being considered to be
independent.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than the Directors
of the Company) had interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO"):
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Eagle Ride Investments Limited* Beneficial owner Corporate 690,638,573 38.30
EmAA NG|

Harmony Rise International Limited** Beneficial owner Corporate 276,000,000 15.30
EmAA NG|

* Eagle Ride Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands ~ * Eagle Ride Investments Limited /3 — & 7 22 /& B2 22 £%

with limited liability is wholly-owned by APAC Investment Holdings Limited (“APAC"),
a company incorporated in Samoa and beneficially owned as to approximately 94.19%
by Mr. Hu Haisong (“Mr. Hu"), the Non-executive Director of the Company, and
approximately 5.81% by the Investors (“Investors”) (whose interests are held on trust
by Mr. Hu). The investors, namely (i) Mr. Wang Haibin, is a PRC resident and engages
in investment business in the PRC; and (ii) RB International Investments Asia Limited is
principally engaged in financial services.

*x Harmony Rise International Limited (“Harmony Rise”) is a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Dr. Xiao Yanming,
executive director and chairman of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any other
person (other than the Directors of the Company) who had an interest or
a short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employer within 1 year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors of the Company and their
associates had the following interests and short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model
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Dr. Xiao Yanming Interest of corporation (1) 276,000,000 276,000,000 15.30
EEiEE = B
Note: =3
1. 276,000,000 shares are held through Harmony Rise. Harmony Rise is an investment 1. 276,000,000 % % ) 7Y i # Harmony Rise F A ©
holding company which is wholly-owned by Dr. Xiao Yanming. Goldstone Investments & — IR B AR - HA -
VHEBAET2EHEE -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors & FXIREEIN  RZE-_TF+-A=+—

and chief executive of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE

At no time during the Year was the Company or its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate. Save as disclosed under the
heading “Share Option Scheme” below, the Company did not grant any
right to subscribe for the shares in the Company to any Directors of the
Company or their respective spouse or children under the age of 18 during
the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme was adopted by members of the Company on
22 May 2015 (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to reward
and provide incentives to eligible participants and encourage them to
contribute to the Group. Under the Scheme, the Board of the Company
may at their discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption
of the Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that date, grant share
options to eligible participants, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries and any other persons including consultants, advisors, agents,
customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The exercise price of share options is the highest of the nominal value of
the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer of the grant and the average closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the grant. An offer of an option shall be deemed to have
been accepted within 30 days from the date of offer upon acceptance of
the option duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1.
The maximum number of securities available for issue under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued capital of the Company. The maximum
entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the ordinary shares in issue of the Company. The option period will not be
more than ten years from the date of grant of the option and the Board
of the Company may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which the option has to be held or other restriction before the exercise of
the subscription right attaching thereon.

As at the date of the adoption of the Scheme, the maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company is 150,005,878 shares. Further details of the Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 21 April 2015.

During the Year, no options granted, exercised or cancelled under the
Scheme.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors are not aware of
any related party transactions which constituted a nonexempt connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is public available and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company maintained the percentage prescribed for
public float requirement under the Listing Rules at the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, currently comprising two non-executive directors
and two independent non-executive directors, has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and has
discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters of the
Company with the management of the Company. The audit committee
has also reviewed the annual results of the Group for the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, although there are
no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company maintained Directors’ liability insurance to protect them
from any loss to which the Directors of the Company might be liable
arising from their actual or alleged misconduct.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by HLM CPA Limited who will retire
and eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group supports environmental protection, implements green office
practices and promotes green awareness within the company. Such
measures include the using of energy- saving lightings and recycled paper,
minimising the use of paper, reducing energy consumption by switching
off idle lightings, computers and electrical appliances.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. XIAO Yanming
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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The Company is committed to maintain statutory and regulatory standards
and adherence to the principles of corporate governance with emphasis
on transparency, independence, accountability and responsibility. The
Company reviews its corporate governance practices from time to
time in order to meet the expectations of shareholders and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles, code provisions and recommended best practices as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company has complied with all code provisions, and where applicable,
certain recommended best practices set out in the CG Code except for
code provisions A.5.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code as explained below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), as contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules, as the required standard for the Directors of the
Company to deal in the securities of the Company. Upon enquiry by
the Company, all Directors of the Company have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board
has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which is available on the website of
the Company.
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The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to skills, regional and industrial experience, cultural and educational
background, race, gender and other qualities. In forming its perspective on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring(s) fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. The process for the nomination of Directors is led
by the Nomination Committee, which has been made on a merit basis. The
Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

The Board

Composition and Appointment

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Company comprises seven
Directors, consisting of Dr. Xiao Yanming as executive Director and
Chairlady; Mr. Tung Shu Sun, Ms. Li Ye and Mr. Wong Tsz Wai as non-
executive Directors; and Mr. Lai Kim Fung, Ms. Wang Zhonggiu and Mr.
Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest as independent non-executive Directors. Pursuant to
the Listing Rules, each independent non-executive Director had given an
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out in the section headed ‘Biographical Details of Directors’ of this annual
report. Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect the interest
of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will review its composition
regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of expertise, skills
and experience to continue to effectively oversee the business of the
Company.
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The Board is responsible for the management of and formulation in the
Group’s overall investment strategies and guidelines in accordance with
the investment objective and policies of the Group. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set out in code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code which included developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices and corporate governance, reviewing
the training and continuous professional development of Directors,
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, developing, reviewing the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors, and
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code provision in the CG
Code and disclosure in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has established
Board committees, namely, audit committee, remuneration committee,
nomination committee and investment committee, and has delegated
to these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. The Board is accountable to the members of
the Company for the performance and activities of the Group.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, were appointed for a specific term of one year or three
years and subject to re-election. One-third of the Directors of the Company
(both executive and non-executive) are subject to retirement by rotation at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Prior to the re-appointment of Mr. Phaisalakani on 23 January 2020, (i)
the number of the INEDs had fallen below the minimum number required
under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules; (ii) the Board did
not have at least one of its INEDs possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; (iii) there was a vacancy
for chairman of the Audit Committee, the number of members of the
Audit Committee had fallen below the minimum number, and no INED
who possesses appropriate qualifications or expertise has been appointed
as a member of the Audit Committee as required under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules; (iv) the Remuneration Committee to comprise a majority of
INEDs could not be met, which did not fulfil the requirement under Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules; and (v) the Nomination Committee to comprise
a majority of INEDs could not be met, which did not fulfil the requirement
under Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.
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The Company should appoint sufficient number of INED and make
appropriate appointment to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee within three months from
date of insufficient number of INED pursuant to Rules 3.11, 3.23, 3.27 of
the Listing Rules and Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code. On 17 January
2020, the Stock Exchange granted a waiver from strict compliance with
Rule 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and an
extension of time for a period of one month to 31 January 2020.

Following the re-appointment of Mr. Phaisalakani as an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee
on 23 January 2021, the Company fulfils the requirements under Rule
3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and Code
Provision A.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with Rule
3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2), and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors, one of whom
possess the requisite appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Board confirmed that the
independence and eligibility of the independent non-executive Directors
are in compliance with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
members. All Directors are encouraged to attend the Company’s general
meetings and each Director makes every effort to attend. However, two
independent non-executive Directors and three non-executive Directors
were unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 10 June 2020
due to other personal engagements.

The Board has effectively overseen and monitored the business activities,
operational and financial performance of the Group, ensured a proper
internal control system is in place to enable risks to be assessed and
managed and the decisions were made in the best interests of the
Company. The Board holds meetings from time to time whenever
necessary and the Board considered that sufficient notice of Board
meetings is given to Directors. The Company Secretary records and
maintains the minutes of the Board meetings for inspection by Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Board convened
a total of 32 meetings, performing its duties in considering, inter alia,
interim and final results and other matters pursuant to the provisions of
the Articles of Association of the Company. Real-time teleconference
and video conference system was adopted at meeting to increase the
attendance rate.
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Directors’ attendance at the meetings during the financial year ended 31 R &

December 2020 are as follows:

at

ﬂ’%%

—EFT A=t —HLEMEF
HEERIT

Annual General

Board Meetings Meetings
Exgel BRRBEXRE
Name of Director Title Attended/Held
EEnR B #7 BHE " BITRE
XIAO Yanming (appointed on Non-executive Director (from 23/23 N/A
18 August 2020 and re-designated on 18 August 2020 to 2 November TiEH
2 November 2020) 2020)
HEA (R _ZFN\A+N\BE FHTEE(ZETFNATN
ZE - WR_ZE_TF+—-H=AH HE-_Z_ZTF+—H_-H)
AE)
Executive Director, Chairlady
(since 2 November 2020)
WITES TR (BZZ-ZTF
+—A=RH)
CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement (resigned on Executive Director 17117 171
1 November 2020) HITES
BRIEW (2 _TF+—F—H#E)
TUNG Shu Sun Non-executive Director 32/32 171
sk FHITES
LI Ye (appointed on 7 October 2020) Non-executive Director 15/15 N/A
ZTE(R_Z_ZFTHALBREZE) FHITES s
WONG Tsz Wai (appointed on Non-executive Director 23/23 N/A
18 August 2020) FHMITES i A
'R (RZZE_ZEFN\ATN\BEZE)
HU Haisong (resigned on 18 August 2020) Non-executive Director 5/8 0/1
HER (RZE_ZEFNA TN\ BEHE) FEHITES
DANG Yin Liang (resigned on Non-executive Director 0/16 0/1
7 October 2020) FEHITEE
BERR (R-T_ZTF+ A tHET)
DING Shiguo (resigned on Non-executive Director 1/8 0/1

18 August 2020)
THE(R=ZF=FF/\A +/\B&F)
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EXB

Annual General

Board Meetings Meetings
Exeed BRERBFRE
Name of Director Title Attended/Held
ExpE Bt BHERBITRE
LAl Kim Fung (appointed on Independent Non-executive 15/18 N/A
1 September 2020) Directors @A
Ballg (R_Z_TFNHA—BEEE) BUFENTEE
WANG Zhonggiu (appointed on Independent Non-executive 14/17 N/A
14 September 2020) Directors T E A
TR (RZZZEFAATHBEERE) BUFHTES
WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest (appointed on Independent Non-executive 10/12 N/A
1 December 2020) Director TEH
=G (RZZE-_TF+-_A—HBEZE) BIFNTES
GUI Shengyue (resigned on 15 June 2020) Independent Non-executive 1/4 0/1
AN (RZZEZTF A TRABME) Director
BIUFHNTES
WANG Xianzhang (deceased on Independent Non-executive 3/8 0/1
14 August 2020) Director
TERE (RZ_ZTF/\A+HBEEHE) BYEMITES
PHAISALAKANI Vichai (re-appointed on Independent Non-executive 9/16 11
23 January 2020 and resigned on Director
1 December 2020) BYFHITES
R (R _TF—-A-+=HBE
ZEYR_ZT_TF+_F—H#E)
Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the BN EEEKEHAIESAGWELE ZES

Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and

all applicable rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled

to have full access to Board papers and related materials so that they

are able to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and

responsibilities.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. XIAO Yanming was the Chairlady of the Company and the Company

has no Chief Executive Officer during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses. They are
requested to provide their respective training records to the Company
Secretary.

The Company has complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code
on Directors’ training. A record of the training received by the respective
Directors are kept and updated by the Company Secretary.

EECZEXRER

EEEIINSERIE SREFHRETBHHFE
MRS IIRE - BHAARRRARE - REAR
REMERHTEEBEIIRE -

ARBCRERFIETEEE AT 2T
RXFEA651k - BEEFET 2B MA
ARBRARWERE REF -

Type(s) of continuous
professional
development activities

Directors == BESERREIHHER
XIAO Yanming H % 8A B
CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement PR R A B
TUNG Shu Sun E b B
Ll Ye I B
WONG Tsz Wai =mTR B
HU Haisong NI/ B
DANG Yin Liang HERR B
DING Shiguo T B
LAI Kim Fung =galllS B
WANG Zhonggjiu F Ak B
WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest mIR G B
GUI Shengyue A B
WANG Xianzhang TEE B
Vichai PHAISALAKANI AR B

A Attending training sessions conducted by the Company

B: Reading articles, journal, newspapers and/or other materials provided by the Company

All Directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participate any suitable training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The management provides such explanation and information to the Board
and reports regularly to the Board on financial position and prospects of
the business of the Group so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board for
approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Directors’
responsibilities in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report. The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to the members of the
Company. A statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
corporate governance roles in the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal controls, and the resourcing of
the finance and internal audit functions.

The Company has established an organizational structure with defined
levels of responsibility and reporting procedures. Appropriate policies
and controls have been designed and established to ensure that assets
are safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and
accounting records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may
impact on the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and
managed. The Company has adopted its risk management policy and
the Group’s internal control system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage and
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment of business
objective. The system includes a defined management structure with
segregation of duties and a cash management system such as monthly
reconciliation of bank accounts.
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The Company has appointed an independent professional as an internal
audit and to report directly to the Audit Committee on a semi-annually
basis. During the Year, Internal Audit conducted selective reviews of the
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls
of the Group over financial, operational and compliance controls with
emphasis on information technology and security, data privacy and
protection, business continuity management and procurement. These
results were reported to the Audit Committee, which then reviewed and
reported the same to the Board. The Audit Committee and the Board were
not aware of any areas of concern that would have a material impact on
the Group’s financial position or results of operations and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be generally effective
and adequate including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.

Based on the respective assessments made by management, the Audit
Committee considered that for the year ended 31 December 2020:

o The risk management and internal control systems, as well as
accounting systems of the Group were in place and functioning
effectively and adequately, and were designed to provide reasonable
assurance that material assets were protected, business risks
attributable to the Group were identified and monitored, material
transactions were executed in accordance with management’s
authorisation and the financial statements were reliable for
publication.

° There was an ongoing process in place for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by the Group.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises five members and is currently
consisting of three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai
Kim Fung, Ms. Wang Zhonggiu and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest, and two
non-executive Director, namely, Ms. Li Ye and Mr. Wong Tsz Wai. Ms.
Wang Zhonggqiu is the chairman of the nomination committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, there was eight REE-Z-_FF+-_A=+—HIFBFE

nomination committee meetings. The attendance of each of the members A * RAFRIT/VAIRELEZESSH - SEAK

at such meeting are as follows: BRZEEZZLEBRAOT ¢

Name of Member Title Attended/Held

BEHA %) HEBITRE

LI Ye (appointed on 7 October 2020) Non-executive Director 3/3

FELZET (R_ZE_ZEF+ALRAEERE) FEHITESF

WONG Tsz Wai (appointed on 18 August 2020) Non-executive Director 6/6

BTEAE (RZZEZEF N \A+/\BEZEE) FEHITESF

HU Haisong (resigned on 18 August 2020) Non-executive Director 1/1

BN (R_Z_TF/\A+/\B&#E) FEHITESF

LAl Kim Fung (appointed on 1 September 2020) Independent Non-executive Director 5/5

BRlg(R_Z_ZFFNA—HEEZE) BYERITES

WANG Zhonggiu (appointed on 14 September 2020)  Independent Non-executive Director 4/4

ITHAMMRZ_TFNATHBAEZE) BYERITES

WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest (appointed on 1 December 2020) Independent Non-executive Director N/A

BERGE (R_ZT_ZEF+-_A—HEZRE) BYERITES N EH

WANG Xianzhang (deceased on 14 August 2020) Independent Non-executive Director 11

IERE (RZZZEFNATHEAEE) BYERITES

PHAISALAKANI Vichai (re-appointed on 23 January Independent Non-executive Director 5/5
2020 and resigned on 1 December 2020) BYUIEHITES

%Jﬂﬂﬂ(ﬁAfyfqi AZ+=ABEZE
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The Board adopted the terms of reference of the nomination committee
which is available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The nomination committee is mainly responsible for
the following functions: reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
making recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The nomination
committee also considered the past performance, qualification, general
market conditions and the Articles of Association of the Company in
selecting and recommending candidates for the directorship. During
the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the nomination committee
has discussed and reviewed the Board composition and appointment,
retirement and re-election of Directors.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of
the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and
the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity.

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge

and experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy.

o Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board.
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o Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

o Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity.

o Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the
Company.

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be adopted
and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee
from time to time for nomination of directors and succession
planning.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at
general meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a remuneration committee for determining the
remuneration of Directors. The remuneration committee has adopted
the model that it will determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration package of individual executive Directors and senior
management. The remuneration committee comprises four members
and is currently consisting of two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lai Kim Fung and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest, and two non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Li Ye and Mr. Wong Tsz Wai. Mr. Lai Kim
Fung is the chairman of the remuneration committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, there were eight REZE-ZT-F
remuneration committee meetings to discuss remuneration related
matters. The attendance of each of the members at such meeting are as

A - AR EIERTTURE B
MEREE - SRKER

F+-A=t—BLFRFE
ZEERHENT R

mEEHMEBR

follows: R

Name of Member Title Attended/Held

REHE R 167 HEBITRE

LI Ye (appointed on 7 October 2020) Non-executive Director 3/3

FEE(R_Z_TF+ALHERE) FHITES

WONG Tsz Wai (appointed on 18 August 2020) Non-executive Director 6/6

BFRE (RZZ_TFN AT N\BERE) HHITESF

HU Haisong (resigned on 18 August 2020) Non-executive Director 171

BN (RZE_2F \A+/\BEIE) FHITESF

LAl Kim Fung (appointed on 1 September 2020) Independent Non-executive Director 5/5
BRlig (R_Z2_TFNA—BEZET) BYIERITES

WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest (appointed on Independent Non-executive Director 11
1 December 2020) B EITES

HRGE (R_Z_ZEF+-_A—HEZE)

WANG Xianzhang (deceased on 14 August 2020) Independent Non-executive Director 11

ITERE (RZZZFN\ATHEAEE) BYERITES

PHAISALAKANI Vichai (re-appointed on 23 January Independent Non-executive Director 5/5

2020 and resigned on 1 December 2020)
grll (R =—ZEF—A -+ =-BHEEZT
WRZZE_ZTF+=-F—HEE)
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The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are of no less
exacting terms than those stipulated in the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the remuneration committee is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The remuneration
committee is mainly responsible for the following functions: determining
the Company’s framework or board policy for remuneration of Directors
and senior management, determining the policy and scope of pension
and compensation arrangements for executive Directors and senior
management, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment and reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board'’s
corporate goals objectives.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration
committee has reviewed the remuneration packages of the Directors and
employees of the Group with reference to the factors including but not
limited to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of them and considered that are fair and reasonable.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an audit committee to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audit committee
has discussed the risk management, internal controls and financial
reporting matters of the Group with the management of the Company.
The audit committee has also reviewed interim results and the annual
results of the Group for the current year. The audit committee comprises
four members and is currently consisting of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Kim Fung and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit,
Ernest, and two non-executive Director, namely, Ms. Li Ye and Mr. Wong
Tsz Wai. Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest is the chairman of the audit committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, there were three audit HE-_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—BIHBEFE

PEgN—y

committee meetings. The attendance of each of the members at such A KA R B 81T ZREZ ? BEEE K

meetings are as follows:

o

I HEREFER LB T

\

Name of Member Title Attended/Held

REHA B HEBITRE

LI Ye (appointed on 7 October 2020) Non-executive Director N/A

FE(R_Z_ZFTA+-BEEE) FEHRITES A~ A

WONG Tsz Wai (appointed on 18 August 2020) Non-executive Director 11

'R (RZZEZEFN\ATN\BEEE) FEHITES

HU Haisong (resigned on 18 August 2020) Non-executive Director 2/2

HER (RZZE_ZEFNA TN\ BEE) FEHITES

LAl Kim Fung (appointed on 1 September 2020) Independent Non-executive Director N/A

Bolg (R—_Z_ZFHH—BEZEE) BIMIERTES A~ A

WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest (appointed on Independent Non-executive Director N/A
1 December 2020) BYUIEHITES TiE A

BRE (R _TF+-_A—HEZRT)

WANG Xianzhang (deceased on 14 August 2020) Independent Non-executive Director 2/2

IEE (RZZ_ZTF/\A+HEEH) BYIERITES

PHAISALAKANI Vichai (re-appointed on 23 January Independent Non-executive Director 3/3
2020 and resigned on 1 December 2020) B IERITES

BE (R—E-—BFE—A-+=BEEEE
YR=B=T&E+= A—AFH)

The terms of reference of the audit committee are of no less exacting
terms than those stipulated in the CG Code. The terms of reference of
the audit committee is available on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The audit committee is mainly responsible
for the following functions: monitoring integrity of the Company’s
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financial statements, including annual report and accounts, interim and ~ Hisfz4s - D*%Fﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%&ZEﬁﬁﬁ
other periodic reports, preliminary result announcements and reviewing — #5¥RE HIE A M B A EE 2 REPESIE &
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them and reviewing B2 X2 Bl -

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and risk management

systems.
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The audit committee has reviewed the auditing performance, the risk
management, the internal controls, the unaudited consolidated interim
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The investment committee is responsible for formulating investment
policies and reviewing and determining the investment portfolio of the
Group. The investment committee comprises five members and consists
of one executive Director, Dr. Xiao Yanming, two non-executive Director,
namely, Ms. Li Ye and Mr. Wong Tse Wai, two independent non-executive
Director, namely, Mr. Lai Kim Fung and Ms. Wang Zhonggiu. Dr. Xiao
Yanming is the chairlady of the investment committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, there were four
investment committee meetings. The attendance of each of the members
at such meetings are as follows:
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Name of Member Title Attended/Held
REHA i) HEBITIRE
XIAO Yanming (appointed on 18 August 2020 and Non-executive Director (from 18 August 11
re- designated on 2 November 2020) 2020 to 2 November 2020)
Bl (M= FNA+N\BEZE - EMITESE (ZETEFENATNAEE
WHRZZEZZTF+—AZHHAME) ZZEZTF+—HAZ=H)
Executive Director, Chairlady (since
2 November 2020)
WITES £/
(B=ZE=FEF+—HF=H)
CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement Executive Director 3/3

(resigned on 1 November 2020)
BRIEW (ZZ2=TF +— H—B#HE)

LI Ye (appointed on 7 October 2020)
T (RN_Z-_TF+AtRAEZT)

HITES

Executive Director

HITES

11
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Name of Member Title Attended/Held

REHA i i1 HEBITRE

WONG Tsz Wai (appointed on 18 August 2020) Executive Director 2/2

"R (RZZEZEFN\A+/\BEEE) WITESE

HU Haisong Non-executive Director 172

LR FEHITES

LAl Kim Fung (appointed on 1 September 2020) Independent Non-executive Director 171
BRlg (R—_Z_ZTFHA—BEZEE) BIMIERITES

WANG Zhonggiu (appointed on 14 September 2020)  Independent Non-executive Director 1/

FHAMRZZ_TFNATHBEZE) BIMIERITES

WANG Xianzhang (deceased on 14 August 2020) Independent Non-executive Director 2/2

ITERERZZ_ZTF/\ A +HAEH) BIMIERITES

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Koon Wai Hung, the Company Secretary of the Company, has
confirmed that he has fulfilled the training requirements under the Listing
Rules for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration payable
to the Company’s external auditor in respect of audit services and non-
audit services were approximately HK$250,000 (2019: HK$250,000) and
nil (2019: HK$30,000) respectively.

MEMBERS’ RIGHTS

Way to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, any
one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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Members’ Enquiries

Members should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong. Members may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that such
information is publicly available. Members may also make enquiries to the
following contact details of the Company:

Address: Room 901, Sing Ho Finance Building,

166-168 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 3901 0901
Email: info@goldstoneinvest.com

Procedures and Sufficient Contact Details for Putting Forward
Proposals at Members’ Meetings

Members are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the operations,
strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed at members’
meeting. Proposal shall be sent to the Board or the Company Secretary
by written requisition. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, members who wish to put forward a proposal should convene
an extraordinary general meeting by the procedures set out in “Way to
Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting” above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Investors

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the Company’s members
through various channels including the Company’s financial reports
(interim and annual reports), annual general meeting and other general
meetings. Members are encouraged to participate in general meetings or
to appoint proxies to attend and vote at the general meetings for and on
their behalf if they are unable to attend the general meetings. The results
of the voting by poll are published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company on a timely basis.

For both investors and other stakeholders, the Company’s website
www.goldstoneinvest.com provides latest information on the Group.
All key information about the Group such as the Company’s financial
reports, announcements, circular and other corporate information can be
downloaded from this website.
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Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy, pursuant to which the Board
may propose to declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders after
taking into consideration of, inter alia, the following factors:

(@ general economic conditions;
(b) the Group’s financial results;

(c) the Group’s capital requirement for business strategies and future
development needs;

(d) possible effects on the Group’s liquidity;
(e)  shareholders’ expectations; and
(f)  other factors which the Board may consider appropriate.

Declaration of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Laws of Cayman Island, Articles of Association
and any applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Company in general
meeting may from time to time declare dividends to be paid to the
shareholders but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount
recommended by the Board. The Board may from time to time pay to
the shareholders such interim dividends as appeared to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company is an investment company and principally engages in
investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and unlisted companies.
As an investment company, the Company does not directly participate
in the production and operation of these listed and unlisted companies.
While actively seeking to optimise its investment portfolio and maximise
shareholder return, the Company lives up to its corporate social
responsibility and strikes a balance between the interests of stakeholders
such as the shareholders and the community, with the ultimate goal of
achieving a sustainable corporation.

The Company has adopted its policy which set out guidelines to the
directors, officers and all relevant employees of the Company to maintain
an approach that integrates environmental, social and governance
("ESG") factors into its investment process and business in order to
maximize the interests of the Group. The Company will take into account
ESG considerations when performing investment analysis and decision-
making processes. These assessments form an important input for the
Company in reaching a decision whether to invest and in monitoring its
investment portfolios.

This environmental, social and governance report (“ESG Report”) has
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) as contained
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The ESG Guide requires a listed
company to identify and disclose ESG information that is material and
relevant to its business.

The initiatives of the Company in implementing environment and social-
related policies are as follows:

(1)  To optimize efficient use of resources in efforts to minimize impact
on the environment and natural resources;

(2)  To encourage employees to be environmentally conscientious; and

(3) To contribute to the community’s well-being.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant ESG aspects for the Group to report
on for this ESG report, key stakeholders such as investors, shareholders
and employees have been taken into consideration. As the Group is
principally engaged in investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and
unlisted companies, the Group did not have any major suppliers, therefore
disclosures relating to supply chain management as set forth in the ESG
Guide is not applicable to the Group.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG approach
and performance. Suggestions can be sent to us via e-mail at
ESG@goldstoneinvest.com.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions and Use of Resources

The Company’s operation is mainly office-based and the Company
is committed to minimising the impact of businesses on the
environment through adopting eco-friendly measures at the office.
For example, staff is encouraged to reduce paper consumption by
double-sided printing and reusing papers printed on one side.

In terms of energy saving measures, there are a number of good
practices at office as follows:

o A mix of LED and fluorescent lights are used to reduce energy
consumption for lighting;

o Staff is reminded to switch off lights and air conditioning in the
meeting room and the computer at the workstation when it is

not in use;

° The room temperature is maintained at 25 degrees Celsius in
summer to save energy; and

° Conference calls or video conference instead of face-to-face
meetings are arranged where possible.

The Company is dedicated to sustain implementation of the
measures above, while it will explore other ecofriendly initiatives.

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020

FOEZSHEREEN

REEARERANRE L8 RERRS T
EHRoZBERE HERERTR  EFC
ERIBRNENMKESE - BERREER - AR
AEETERERENRLMEIFLTRAIZE
TR EAE  NEEWEEM TR HER
Atk - RE - @ RERESITAEABHE
BEENFEHAREL TER

HBERER

RABELFOERBPINERE HLERER
A RRBREER - AR R EXEEE
b3k ESG@goldstoneinvest.com ©

A. BiE
e SR

RRARABMAEERER/E - At AR
AREMAEANRRER BOEE
WA RREBRENTE - flan - RNAF
KEETZRBEETH  URERE
BT ENA AR ok -

EEigEhE  ARBIEERT MR
=R

. LALED ¢ B B K — 2015 Ay E 8 X
& LURVK BRBE A BER HAE ¢

. HEBETMEN SIEMEET

s BMAERERNERNREIMREFE
5BRE - UEHEER K

BELHNERAREEHREE

[

R o

RRARBEBER T LR R
IR TRARAT T HETT EL MR RIE I ©



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Given the nature of the Group’s business, the main emissions and
wastes produced by the Group are primarily attributable to its use of
electricity, water, paper and gasoline. The Group does not produce
any hazardous waste in its operations. The Company believes that its
business operations have minimal direct impact on the environment
and natural resources. The Company is not aware of any material
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the environment and natural resource relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Electricity

The Company endeavors to conserve energy by utilising energy
efficient equipment and light fixtures. Employees are encouraged to
save energy by turning off lights and equipment when not in use.

Electricity consumed by the Group’s office in its normal business
operations is supplied by The Hongkong Electric Co., Ltd. The
electricity consumption by the Group at its office was approximately
21,433 (2019: 26,752) kWh, producing CO, equivalent emissions
of approximately 16,932 (2019: 21,134) kg and an energy
consumption intensity of approximately 177 (2019: 48) kWh per
square meter during the year.

Water

There is no direct water supply to the office apart from water uses/
affluent discharges at shared facilities of the office building for
which no usage statistics are available. Water consumption by the
Group for the year involved mainly bottled drinking water uses at
its offices premises and the Group’s business operations do not
require any other water usage. The Group’s office utilised a total of
approximately 10.40 (2019: 5.60) m? of drinking water with a water
consumption intensity of approximately 1.49 (2019: 0.70) m* per
employee for domestic consumption during the year.
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Paper

The Company encourages employees to go paperless as much as
possible by limiting printouts as well as communicating via e-mail
as opposed to fax. Employees are also encouraged to re-use paper
and conserve paper usage by printing double-sided to the extent
practicable. The Group has not otherwise adopted any dedicated
recycling programme regarding paper uses.

During the year, the Group used a total of approximately 219 (2019:
280) kg of print paper in its normal office- based operations and the
total CO, equivalent emissions for the paper used was approximately
1,053 (2019: 1,342) kg.

Gasoline

The Company encourages employees to always keep the
environment in mind when undertaking business activities including
use of public transportation to travel to properties. Employees are
encouraged to optimize resources to help the Group minimize its
impact on the environment and natural resources.

During the year, a total of approximately 0 (2019: 3,387) litres of
unleaded petrol was used for the motor vehicles of the Group.
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Emissions data from the vehicles used by the Group are set out as
follows:

RIE - AgMEAWRE

R E(E AR P BURES I T

Nitrogen Sulphur Particulate Carbon
Oxides Oxides Matters Dioxide
AG1Y maty BRE =R (24
(NOx) (SOx) (PM) (co,)
(9) (9) (kg)
(%) (%) (%) (AFT)
Unleaded Petrol used by the ~ AEEMALRBEREZE
private vehicles of the Group LA~ B EfIEFE B
during the year ended B B 2
31 December 2020 —ECEH+ZA 0 0 0
Sp=[
31 December 2019 —E-N¥F+ZH 1,341 50 99 7,993
ET=E
SOCIAL He
Employment and Labour Practices ERERZIESR

The Company has complied with the applicable employment-
related laws and regulations currently in force in Hong Kong. The
Company does not employ staffs who are below 18 years of age.
The Company provided such rights and benefits to its employees
which are no less than those required statutorily. No employee is
paid less than the minimum wage specified by the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Company’s
contributions to the defined contribution retirement scheme it
operated under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are made by
each monthly contribution day.

The Company is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to prevention of child and forced labour.
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Working Conditions, Health and Safety

The Company is committed to complying with the laws relating to
anti-discrimination and equal opportunities promotion. It also strives
to provide a pleasant, safe and healthy workplace for our employees.
We care for our employees and recognize that having positive
attitude helps motivate employees at workplace.

The Company has developed a set of work safety codes covering
areas of environmental hygiene and cleanliness, machine operation,
smoking ban and fire prevention, hazardous materials handling,
arrangements in times of typhoons and rainstorms, as well as
response to emergencies, etc. It also requires strict compliance with
these work safety codes by its employees.

The Company is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to providing a safe working environment & protecting
employees from occupational hazards during the Year.

Staff Care, Development and Training

We consider our employees an important asset of the Company. We
strive to provide a fair and respectful working environment to our
employees. In selecting our employees, the Company considers the
experience, knowledge and background of the individual that can
contribute to the diversity and caliber of the Company.

The Company supports its staff to develop and enhance their
professional knowledge and skills to cope with the evolving market
environment and compliance level. On top of on-the-job training,
the staff is encouraged to take external professional training to
strengthen their work-related expertise. The Company offers training
program in compliance to our directors and employees through
necessary continuous training courses. The range of training hours
varies depending on seminar, courses and events available for the
year. During the year, the company secretary of the Company has
completed more than 15 hours of training related to the Continuing
Professional Development (CPD) requirements in order to discharge
his duties professionally.

We adopt a five-day workweek and encourage our employees
to have a good balance among health, work and social or family
activities.
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Anti-corruption

The Company upholds high standards on promoting anti-
corruption, with all its employees and directors are required to
maintain a high level of business ethics. The Company strives to
eliminate bribery and corruption across its management and staff. To
do so, all employees are required to comply with the relevant anti-
corruption laws and guidelines so as to ensure that they carry out
their duties in good faith. The Company closely monitors the conduct
of its staff to prevent wrong-doings amongst the Board, its senior
management and its staff, such as prohibiting transfer of benefits
while considering any company or project investment. The Audit
Committee has the overall responsibility for matters related to the
internal controls of anti-corruption.

During the reporting period, the Company had no legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Company or its
employees.

Community Investment

The Company is fully aware of the importance of interacting with the
wider community in fulfilling corporate social responsibility. In this
aspect, the Company and its Investment Manager would explore the
possibility to identify suitable partners and support community and
environmental programmes that align with the Company’s missions
and values.

The Company believes the best way to serve the community is to
drive positive impact through our investment portfolio. During the
year, the Company explored investment opportunities in several
proposed environmental protection projects. To create shared values
with the community and stakeholders, the Company will continue to
consider ESG factors in selecting future investment projects.
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C. HKEX ESG GUIDE REFERENCE

C. BXXFTESGIEo|2E %o

HKEX ESG Guide Subject Areas ESG Aspects Disclosure Reference
BRFESGREITHEEER REENRBER KENASL 20|
Environmental A1, Emissions Refer to the “Environmental” section of this ESG Report.
AFRE ALEER FEANRESCRENRAIRELT -
A2. Use of resources
ALERER
A3. The environment and natural resources The office-ased nature of the Company’s operations are not considered to
BEERRARER have significant impact on environment and natural resources.
ARARBENRLERTNEFHRARARERTBREAT G
Social Employment and labour BT, Employment All matters related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
BALE practices B1.EER promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal apportunty, diversity,

ERRBIRR

B2. Health and safety
BLEFERE

B3. Development and training

B3.EE RS

B4. Labour standards
B4 & T8

Operating practices BS. Supply Chain Management
2EED B EHER

B6. Product responsiility
Bo.EmAL

B7. Anti-corruption

B7.RE5
Community B3. Community investment
ite 8 HERE
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anti-dliscrimination, and other benefits and welfare complied with the
Employment Ordinance.
EMEEBEMREE RERSH THNE - BY TSke 47
It RESUREMEERENNSE LETERES -

The office-based operation of the Company is not considered to have
significant occupational hazards. The Company has complied with all the
major relevant laws and regulations such as Occupational Safety And Health
Ordinance.
ARRRBENBLERIMEETBREANB LS - AAET
FEEELRRAN  NBER2 RERER -

Refer to "Social" section of this ESG Report.
FEHNRESCRENHEIRELT -

Child labour and forced labour are prohibited in the Company.
ARAEEFREISRHAT

The office-based operation of the Company is not considered to have a
significant environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
ARRRBENRLERTNEFEERMRR L TRHEANRAER
temk -

The office-based operation of the Company is not considered to have
significant environmental and social risks of product responsibility due to its
nature of business.

ARABRRELHUE  NANBLERINEFEEREL L TR
REANBRRHEER -

Refer to “Social” section of this ESG Report.
HEHARAESCRENHE]BELT -

Refer 1o “Social” section of this ESG Report.
HEHNRESCRENHEIBRLT -
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TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLDSTONE INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS EAGLE RIDE INVESTMENT HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldstone
Investment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 151,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been prepared assuming that the Group
will continue as a going concern. We draw attention to note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements which indicated that the Group incurred
a net loss of approximately HK$36,302,000 and as at the same date, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$63,865,000, total liabilities exceeded its total assets by approximately
HK$129,549,000 while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$168,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. As explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, these consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Our opinion is not qualified in respect
of these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Key audit matters

HEERER
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PRV A R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZBRNNEERRERSEE

Valuation of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

EERBRAABERARSZMBEE (RO ABETARRE] 2E

The Group’s financial assets designated as at FVTPL were
carried at approximately HK$4,535,000 as at 31 December
2020. Management has assessed the fair value of these
unlisted investments with reference to the valuation reports
performed by an independent professional valuer.
RZZZTF+_A=+—H  ESBEEEAERANERE
SPABHE A EXNR4,5350008 T - EREELEE
VEEGEMREENGEERSTEZEIELTREZAR
BE-

The valuation of these unlisted investments was subject to
significant judgment and estimation by the management and
has a significant financial impact to the consolidated financial
statements.

ZEIF EMIRE ZHERRERREELEARAE &G
HIZEMBRRAEATLE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation
assessment on financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss included:
BMEREREHREAABEFABR M BEENGE
AR T BLE

- Evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer;

—  AHMEEEMNEHMN B REERE

- Discussed with the valuer on the valuation
methodologies, assumptions and key estimates used in
the valuation for estimating the fair value;

—  HEEMFIWRGEERE  GERAREAAREEZ
EELE AR

- Challenged the appropriateness and reasonableness
of the valuation methodology assumption and key
estimates use in the valuation based on our knowledge
of the relevant industry;

— BRERMUEETEZMBERMEER X  HEMA
BREBRAEFT2BEEEREEIE

- Checked the mathematical accuracy of the valuation;
and

- EEREZEBEEE K

- Assessed the reasonableness of the methods and
assumptions used by the management for estimating
the fair value.

- MEEREMFAFTAABEERAZAERBERZE
B

We considered that the management’s judgment and
assumption used in the valuation of financial assets
designated as at FVTPL are reasonable and appropriate.
BMRR BERRAABEFABRZUBEEZME
FREREHERMERBESERES -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts (“HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and such internal control as the directors of the Company determined is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BN 2B AR

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Yip Yuen Nga
Practising certificate number: P05908

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

y= MBS T

wN

H i 2 W

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #=E

1%

—ETF+A=T-HILFE

2020 2019
—EC-SF —E—NF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
Revenue Wz (8) - -
Net loss on financial assets at fair BARBESABRZ
value through profit or loss MG EECEEFEH (10) (5,794,542) (4,767,488)
Net other income, gains and losses ~ EAth Uz A ~ Uk 25 & 518 % 58 (8) 1,151,798 210,587
Administrative and other operating 7B & E fib &8 f X%
expenses (21,757,565) (24,601,594)
Loss from operations e e (11) (26,400,309) (29,158,495)
Finance costs B ER (12) (9,901,282) (14,515,341)
Loss before tax BR 7% Al T 48 (36,301,591) (43,673,836)
Income tax expense FTigBiF < (13) - -
Loss for the year and total RARHEE AEEER
comprehensive expenses EiEREEMZ R
attributable to owners of the
Company (36,301,591) (43,673,836)
Loss per share BkEE
Basic and diluted HARR#5E (17) (0.020) (0.024)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fre IR IR

At 31 December 2020 R - B -FF+-H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-BH —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Furniture, fixtures and equipment R~ KB RRE (18) - =
Financial assets at fair value through 2R /o BE ABR 2
profit or loss B A E (19) 4,535,340 10,906,777
Rental deposit MEES (20) 60,693 944,859
Right-of-use assets FHELSE 1) - 8,788,249
4,596,033 20,639,885
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value' BARBEFABRZZ
through profit or loss IS EE (19) 448,000 =
Other receivables, deposits and HEMEWE - Zek
prepayments TETRIE (20) 87,711 417,053
Cash and bank balances B e MB1TER (22) 168,180 160,039
703,891 577,092
Current liabilities REBEE
Creditors and accrued expenses B FIENTERE R (23) 11,704,868 8,078,346
Unsecured borrowings ERAEE (24) 37,706,111 27,480,024
Corporate bonds NGIEEE = (25) 6,970,152 12,313,303
Lease liabilities HEAR (26) 8,188,237 3,646,789
64,569,368 51,518,462
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (63,865,477) (50,941,370)
Total assets less current liabilities & E & ERREAE (59,269,444) (30,301,485)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRE

At 31 December 2020 R=ZE-FF+-H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
Non-current liabilities ERBEMF
Unsecured borrowings ERFES (24) - 3,083,743
Corporate bonds UNGIEEES (25) 69,086,340 57,777,109
Lease liabilities HEARE (26) 1,193,245 5,205,101
70,279,585 66,065,953
NET LIABILITIES B EFE (129,549,029) (96,367,438)
Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital [ (27) 22,544,485 22,544,485
Reserves {1 (152,093,514) (118,911,923)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY =N (129,549,029) (96,367,438)
Net liability value per share EREETFE (30) (0.0718) (0.0534)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 151 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Xiao Yanming

B & 85
Director

EF

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

s O R BB

For the year ended 31 December 2020 @ifgf§¢+—ﬂ —t+—HILFE

Capital
Share Share redemption Accumulated

capital premium reserves losses Total

Rx RGEE  EARERE 2 ER &zt

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS

BT BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—-A—-H 22,544,485 672,651,012 168,800 (748,057,899) (52,693,602)

Total comprehensive expenses PARYER - - - (43,673,836) (43,673,836)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-NFT-A=1-H

1 January 2020 R=2-%£-A-H 22,544,485 672,651,012 168,300 (791,731,735) (96,367,438)

Waiver of amount due to the ulfimate ﬁﬁ%”@ﬂﬁ% 25k

controlling party - - - 3,120,000 3,120,000

Total comprehensive expenses FERS &% - - - (36,301,591) (36,301,591)

At 31 December 2020 ZE2EET-A=1-H 22,544,485 672,651,012 168800  (824913326)  (129,549,029)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Hﬂ/\ =
“, i/}lbii’%

For the yearended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-_TF+-H=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
=g BT Vo
Operating activities RETEH
Loss before tax BR T B B 1R (36,301,591) (43,673,836)
Adjustments for: BATEIEFE
Depreciation of furniture, Bl HBERZENE
fixtures and equipment (18) - 1,513
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {# FfEEET & 1) 1,208,489 2,929,416
Net loss on financial assets at fair BRANEBEFAEBERZZ
value through profit or loss BB E 2 BB FEE (10) 5,794,542 4,767,488
Net exchange loss V& 5 5185 R 128,887 865,949
Gain on termination of lease RIERE 2 e (182) -
Impairment losses on right-of-use ~ {# & E 2 B EEE
assets 8,241,405 -
Interest income on rental deposit HeZeF B WA (8) (317,519) (85,925)
Interest expenses MERZ (12) 9,901,282 14,515,341
Operating cash outflows before LEEREFHRIKLERE
movements in working capital Vin (11,344,687) (20,680,054)
Decrease in other receivables, Hihp s - e &
deposits and prepayments TET FRIE R A 1,533,288 2,837,699
Increase in creditors and accrued & 30IE R TE IR B A 38 0
expenses 6,720,602 4,733,674
Net cash used in operating RETHFBARESFE
activities (3,090,797) (13,108,681)
Investing activity RETE
Payment for rental deposit HEZS MR (77.320) (1,257,732)
Net cash used in investing RETBHFARSFRA
activity (77,320) (1,257,732)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AR EeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—ZT -_TF+-A=1+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-BH —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 7 BT BT
Financing activities AEEE
Corporate bonds interest paid RNEEFHZ A B (25) - (2,074,384)
Loans interest paid BRF B (200,000) (1,184,433)
Net proceeds from issue of BT RRES Z TSR
corporate bonds HE (25) - 8,350,000
Net proceeds from unsecured loans EKIREE 2 F115 R IEF 58 24,330,000 50,805,327
Repayment of unsecured loans EEEEREE (20,000,000) (53,000,000)
Net proceeds from director’s loan EZEE 2B HIAFE - 183,151
Repayment of lease liabilities BREAEas (1,013,750) (2,999,808)
Net cash generated from MEETBMELRESFE
financing activities 3,116,250 79,853
Net decrease in cash and cash HERBESEEBEYRD
equivalents HEE (51,867) (14,286,560)
Effect of foreign exchange IEERSBH 2ZE
rate change 8 -
Cash and cash equivalents REDZRERRESEEY
at the beginning of year 220,177 14,506,737
Cash and cash equivalents RERZBEESREESEEY
at the end of year 168,318 220,177
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEYE :
represent:
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTTH R (22) 168,180 160,039
Other receivable B At R
— broker's account — KWK E (20) 138 60,138
168,318 220,177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

64

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and its
ultimate holding company is APAC Investment Holdings Limited
("APAC") (incorporated in Samoa). Its ultimate controlling party is
Mr. Hu Haisong (“The Ultimate Controlling Party”), who is a non-
executive director of the Company during the year and resigned on
18 August 2020. The registered office of the Company is at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
at Sing Ho Finance Building, 166—168 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at a special general meeting on 23 October 2020 and
approved by the Cayman Islands Registry of Companies on 23
October 2020, the Company’s English name has changed from
“Eagle Ride Investment Holdings Limited” to “Goldstone Investment
Group Limited” and the Company’s Chinese name has changed from
"EHREERARAR " to " @ AREEBEER AT " with effect
from 23 October 2020.

The Group is principally engaged in investment holdings and trading
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. It is authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2021.

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Going Concern

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately HK$36,302,000 and as at that date, the Group
recorded net current liabilities of approximately HK$63,865,000 and
net liabilities of approximately HK$129,549,000 while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$168,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to future liquidity and performance of
the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing whether
the Group will be able to repay the outstanding borrowings and be
able to finance its future working capital and finance requirements.
Certain measures have been taken to manage its liquidity needs and
to improve its financial position which include, but are not limited to,
the following:

(i) In January 2021, the Company placed 90,140,000
new ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.28 per share to
independent third parties with net proceeds of approximately
HK$24,400,000. Details are disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 4 January 2021 in relation to the
completion of subscription of new shares under general
mandate;

(i) In January 2021, the Company issued 1-year, 8% coupon
unsecured non-redeemable convertible bonds of an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$50,010,000 to
independent third parties to subscribe for 166,700,000
conversion shares at the initial conversion price of HK$0.30
per share with net proceeds of approximately HK$49,500,000.
Details are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 22 January 2021 in relation to the completion of placing
of convertible bonds under special mandate;

mEERE
REEE

BHE-_T-ZTF+-_A=1+—HLILHF
[ - R& B 815 % E18 436,302,000 %8
ToBHEZR AKSEZEBRBHAR
% {B #163,865,0008 7t X B EFELN
129,549,000 7T - MHARE RIS EE
Y475 168,00078 7T ° 2 HIE B RNTAE
BEATHEERZ Al HASEEFEL
ERRENBRERNRE  WAKE RN
REREEXBBEFEREERERE

g

ERNZERN EHBAKERE B
HENERREE ZEE MR ARKE
BESMYBRER ARAREFER
BEEEAKENRKRBE S RKREN
NEAARERR - DHRIE THBE
BERDESHEMEEEMBMN -
BRENRRATEIA

(i) RZZT=Z—F—A8 AARERSRK
0.28 BT ERRE L FE = HBLE
90,140,000 f% & % & AR - FT1S 5K
TEHEE#) 524,400,000 8 7T ° 15
RARRBH AT _—_—4F— AN
HARABBTRIRE — R ERE
FRM R EHEE

iy RZEBEZ—F—A8 XRFREL
F = BITARSREEA50,010,000
B — FHIR B K 8% K]
BB Bl AT AR B 55 - LAIR V8 3R AR
B9 1% 0.30/% 7L 52 % 166,700,000
RIMARAR D - FTISFIBIFREA A
49,500,000 7T ° 71BN A A H
AT —4F—HA-+ZHARA
B BT Rk IR IR B R L B AT R AR
BEHFHRNERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going Concern (Continued)

(iii) In February 2021, the Company allotted a total of
270,520,000 new shares under general mandate, representing
approximately 12.50% of the total issued share capital of
the Company as enlarged by the issue of new shares at
HK$0.33 per share to an independent third party, Dragon
Synergy Holdings Limited which is wholly owned by Ms. Liu
Yutong, with net proceeds of approximately HK$88,400,000.
Immediately after completion of the placing, Dragon Synergy
Holdings Limited has become a substantial shareholder of the
Company. The net proceeds raised will be used for general
working capital of the Group. Details are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 February 2021 in
relation to the completion of subscription of new shares under
general mandate;

(iv)  In March 2021, the Group and one of the Group’s bondholder
entered into a letter of intent whereby the bondholder
expressed intention to subscribe for, and the Company
intended to issue and allot preference shares to replace the
corporate bond due to the bondholder in the amount of
approximately HK$10,000,000; and

(iv)  The Group will seek to obtain additional new financial support
including but not limited to borrow loans, issuing additional
equity or debt securities.

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review
of the cash flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months
from the reporting date taking into account the impact of the above
measures. The directors of the Company believe that the Group will
have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future working capital
and other financing requirements. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
future liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities respectively.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments'
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, —Phase 2°
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current and related amendments to Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 (2020)'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before
Intended Use?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date of the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue mainly from dividend income and
interest income.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEGTEE &)

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEHHRA (F)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time i fF & LA TS Borp — IR 45 - BRI 4 BE

by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the B - milias 2Rk B TER

relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is B4 E AF A R 1 BE PR R AR

met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the e RAKERERAK TFFRFEREIL
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group FAREE BRI
performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that s AEEMNBHNELNRA—EE
the customer controls as the Group performs; or B MakIAE E NS B R AR i

BREH o

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with s AEBMBHVAELZEAARE
an alternative use to the Company and the Group has an EREARMEE  AAEEEES
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to B TR B AR N R EL B Al s fil BT
date. HIRE AR o

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the AR - Wz R P S E R 7 on sk AR 75

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service. 22 1) 1 Y BF ) B R o

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to KB 2 BB AU R IE 2 #E A #E L

receive payments have been established. iR o

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the FMBEWATIZ2BAREEAS REAER

principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, MEREEEELERGT  MEBRMNERR

which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash s EERRTFRNGETRRESR
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s AEBTREZEENVZ R AR
net carrying amount on initial recognition. EFEZEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate standalone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to product inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:
° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less

any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review or a change in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 E — T _ZF+-_A=-+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interests and other costs (e.g. transaction costs)
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those asset until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e., Hong
Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all
the employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwvill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of furniture, fixtures and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of furniture, fixtures and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 E — T _ZF+-_A=-+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,

except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may

irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an

equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity

investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration

recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS

3 Business Combinations applies.

(i

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer creditimpaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets including deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for deposits and other
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances and collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate grouping.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 E — T _ZF+-_A=-+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iiiy  Credit-impaired financial assets

4. TEETEE(H)
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A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash

flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a

financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(a

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;
. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E — T _ZF+-_A=-+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by an entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities (including other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E — T _ZF+-_A=-+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker is the person or group that
responsible for allocating resources and accessing performance of
the operating segments and geographical location. The Group has
determined the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) as its
chief operating decision-maker.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
of class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at banks and on hand and
demand deposits with any bank or other financial institution. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturing at acquisition.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group that
is preparing its financial statement.

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to
the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or a parent of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

The entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other
entity is an associate of the same third party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a person
identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or

obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, regardless

of whether a price is charged.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E — T _ZF+-_A=-+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity, and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(©)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. EXSFHERMATTTHBERE

98

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of right-of-use assets, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belongs, including allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established, otherwise
recoverable amount is determined at the smallest group of cash
generating units, for which the relevant corporate assets have been
allocated. Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2020, impairment losses of approximately
HK$8,241,000 (2019: HK$nil) in respect of right-of-use assets have
been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Depreciation

The Group depreciates the furniture, fixtures and equipment over
their estimated useful live and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight line method. The
estimated useful live reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the Group’s furniture, fixtures and equipment. The residual
values reflect the directors’ estimated amount that the Group would
currently obtain from the disposal of the assets, after deducting the
estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already of the age and
in the condition expected at the end of their useful lives.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

The listed and unlisted equity and other related financial assets
investments are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engaged an
independent professional valuer to perform the valuation. The
Investment Committee and the investment manager work closely
with the valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The Investment Committee and the investment
manager report the valuation finding to the Board to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of financial instruments. Note 7 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of financial instruments, as well as
the detailed sensitivity analysis for these assumptions.

The directors of the Company believe that the chosen valuation
techniques and assumptions used are appropriate in determining the
fair value of financial instruments.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income tax

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had estimated unused tax
losses of approximately HK$266,770,000 (2019: approximately
HK$248,460,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised on such tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
taxable profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated
are more than expected, recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such recognition takes place.

Going concern consideration

The directors of the Company have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on the assumption that the Group will be able
to operate as a going concern in the foreseeable future, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, about the future outcome of events or
conditions which are inherently uncertain. The directors consider
that, after taking into account of all major events or conditions and
the subsequent events disclosed in note 38, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast significant
doubt upon the going concern assumption as set out in Note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has the capability
to continue as a going concern.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged from
prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. No change was
made in the objectives, policies or processes as compared to those in
2019.

The directors of the Company monitor the capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by

total assets.

The management considers the gearing ratio at the year ended was

EXEmER

AEBEEREERN  UBARAKEET
ERKRARIFELE  YRKABE
EEBRERATE  RELARR 2O
B AEEBRREREUETEELHELE

R o

RRARBEETEHRTEANRE - (FRE
Mgl — 82 ARBAEFEEER
RARZRERZBERR - RIBE=
2 AKESRBIKME EITH
B BRI RBETHEXREDRE
FHEEBEARE -H_T—AFL

ARAEEEBEER B FEREAR o
BELE R Ty AR S R AR A A E -

ERERFARERCEEARBIL RN
T

as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Total borrowings: mEs
Corporate bonds NaElEHF 76,056,492 70,090,412
Unsecured borrowings ERAEE 37,706,111 30,563,767
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,381,482 8,851,890
123,144,085 109,506,069
Total assets BERE 5,299,924 21,216,977
Gearing ratio BEAREHLEE 2,323.51% 516.12%

The increase in the gearing ratio during the year ended 31 December
2020 was primarily resulted from the decrease in financial assets
designated as at FVTPL and right-of-us assets.

HE_Z-_ZEFE+_-_A=1+—HILEE
NEEBBLERENEZHRIET AR
AABEFABRZMEEERFERE
BERMDFTE -

SHREKERRAF / FH 2020

101



102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7.

Categories of financial instruments

The table below provided a reconciliation of the line items in the
consolidated statement of financial position to the categories of

BRREREE
SMIAZES

TREKGAMBMAKRBRRSHT
BRIz #0K -

financial instruments.

2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at amortised cost WA R 2 IS E = 232,261 1,488,186
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL 8§ E AR AR EET ABE
TG EE 4,983,340 10,906,777
5,215,601 12,394,963
Financial liabilities BaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost; WA R 2B E -
Other payables H th B 4 SR8 430,000 430,000
Unsecured borrowings EIREE 37,706,111 30,563,767
Corporate bonds RNalfEH 76,056,492 70,090,412
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,381,482 8,851,890
123,574,085 109,936,069
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL, deposits, other receivables, cash and bank balances,
other payables, lease liabilities, corporate bonds and unsecured
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and operational
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(1) Risk management
(@)  Market risk
() Foreign currency risk

The Group has foreign currency investment in
financial assets, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. Approximately 87% (2019:
approximately 88%) of the Group’s financial
assets denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the Company. The
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
by closely monitoring the movement of foreign
currency rate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)

(@)  Market risk (Continued)

() Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The significant carrying amounts of the Group’s

P ERER (&)

PRk E I B YR BUCR ()

(1) EEBEEZE(H)

@) WEERE (&)

0

SN B (4R)

RBEHR - AEE A

foreign currencies denominated monetary assets INESHECEBEEL
at the end of reporting period are as follows: ERAEEEAT :
2020 2019
—BoRHF —ENEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Singapore dollars (“S$") Fhnsg 7T (T pnsg T 1) 4,535,340 10,906,777
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of REEEEZHINE T

fluctuation of the S$.

If the exchange rate of HK$ against S$ has been
weakened or strengthened by 5% (2019: 5%), the
Group’s loss for the year would have been higher
or lower by HK$226,767 (2019: HK$545,339).

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the Group’s variable-rate
bank balances. The Group has no significant
bank balances for both years, the management
considers the rise is minimal.

The Group’s interest rate risk related primarily to
the variable interest bearing deposits and debts.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
the necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's sensitivity to interest rate risk has
been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for bank balances at the end of the
reporting period, which is not significant influence
to the Group’s loss before tax. A 100 basis point
change is used which represents management’s
assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates have been 100 (2019: 100) basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's loss before tax for
the year ended 31 December 2020 would be
increased/decreased by HK$1,229,758 (2019:
increased/decreased by HK$1,092,859).

7.

B EREE (&)
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(1) EfEEZE (&)

(a)

5 (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)

(@)  Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Other price risk

The Group's strategy for the management of
market risk is driven by the Group’s investment
objective. The listed and unlisted equity and
other related financial assets investments in Hong
Kong and overseas are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the
Group's equity investments are exposed to other
price risk. The Group’s market risk is managed
on a regular basis by the investment manager in
accordance with policies and procedures in place
and are monitored on a regular basis by the Board.
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based
on regular monitoring of the performance of
securities compared to that of the relevant stock
market index and other industry indicators, as well
as the Group’s liquidity needs. To manage its price
risk arising from the equity investments, the Group
maintains a portfolio of diversified investments in
terms of industry distribution such as education
and minerals industry sectors. Temporarily, the
Group’s management has monitored price risk and
will consider hedging of the risk if necessary.

The management manages the exposure of
financial assets designated as at FVTPL by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group'’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments operating in securities and brokerage
industry sectors quoted in the Stock Exchange.

The Group has not hedged its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities. The Group’s
securities investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange are valued at the quoted market prices
at the reporting date.

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Other price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the end of reporting period. For sensitively
analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate remains at
15% in the current year.

If listed equity prices had been 15% higher/lower
for financial assets designated as held for trading
(2019: 15% higher/lower), loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020 would be decreased/
increased by HK$67,200 (2019: decreased/
increased by HK$nil). If the unlisted equity prices
had been higher/lower by 15% for financial assets
designated as at FVTPL (2019: 15% higher/lower)
and all other variables were held constant, loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would
be decreased/increased by HK$680,301 (2019:
decreased/increased by HK$1,636,017).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable
or unwilling to meet a commitment that it has entered
into with the Group. Financial assets which potentially
subject the Group to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances,
deposits and other receivables.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by transacting
the majority of its financial assets and contractual
commitment activities with brokers, banks and regulated
exchanges with high credit ratings and that the Group
considers to be well established. All transactions in listed
financial assets are settled/paid for upon delivery using
approved and reputable brokers. The risk of default is
considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only
made when the broker has received payment. Payment is
made on a purchase only when the securities have been
received by broker. The Group reviews and monitors the
credit concentration of investments on a regular basis.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks or financial institutions.
Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks and financial
institutions, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group invests in both listed and unlisted equity
securities which are classified as financial assets at
FVTPL. The listed equity investment is considered
readily realisable as it is listed in the Stock Exchange.
The unlisted equity securities may not be traded in
an organised public market and may be illiquid. As a
result, the Group may not be able to liquidate quickly its
investments in these instruments at an amount close to
their fair value in order to meet its liquidity requirements
or to respond to specific events such as deterioration
in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents in order to fulfil the Group’s
financial liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities which
are included in the maturity analysis provided internally
to the key management personnel for the purpose of
managing liquidity risk. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table reflects the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flow.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

7.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)

P ERER (&)

BHEREER N REE ()

(1) EEEE (&)

(c)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (© TmEELRERE (EZ
2020
S 33
Weighted Total Total
average undiscounted carrying
interestrate  Ondemand  Within 1 year 2-5years  OverSyears  cash flows amounts
nE¥s ARRRE
HE EEZX - 3132 BRIE b=t 2 FEAHE
% HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
% BT ) BT B BT Br
Creditors [ERFE - 430,000 - - - 430,000 430,000
loanfomadirector ~~ EEZER - 72,269 - - - 72,269 72,269
loanfromalicensed ~ HEHERAER
money lending company 10 8,600,000 - - - 8,600,000 8,587,713
Loans from third parties ~ $= /& 13 25876578 3,413,200 - - 29289778 29,046,129
Corporate bonds NG 6 6,325,616 4550000 75074384 10500000 96,450,000 76,056,492
Lease liabilties HEEfR 12 3749760 4866912 1216728 - 9833400 9381482
45,054,223 12,830,112 76,291,112 10,500,000  144,675447 123,574,085
2019
ZE-NE
Weighted Total Total
average undiscounted arnying
interestrate ~~ Ondemand  Within 1 year 2-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amounts
TS AURRE
il E2X %R ZERE BRANE nEEE KEERE
% HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
% BT B B BT BT BT
Creditors [ERZE - 430,000 - - - 430,000 430,000
loanfomadiector ~~ EZZER 6 - 11,151,612 - - 11151612 11,803,639
loanfromalicensed ~ HHEMELAER
money lending company 10 - 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000 7,987,713
Loans from third parties %=/ &3 11 7,201,596 1,529,500 3,413,200 - 1214429% 10,772,415
Corporate bonds NAlfEH 6 1875410 11,100000 28274590 54300000  95550,000 70,090,412
Lease liablties i 12 - 449712 5604640 - 10124352 8851890
9507006 36280824 37312430 54300000 137400260 109,936,069
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)

(c)

(@

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Taking into account the Group's major events or
conditions and the subsequent event disclosed in note
38, the directors consider the liquidity of the Group will
be improved.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect (loss)
profit arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the processes and technology supporting the
Group's operations either internally within the Group
or externally at the Group’s service provider, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity
risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory
requirements and generally accepted standards of
investment management behavior. Operational risks
arise from all of the Group’s activities.

The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so
as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to
its reputation with achieving its investment objective of
generating returns to investors.

The primary responsibility for the development and
implementation of controls over operational risk rests
with the Board. This responsibility is supported by the
development of overall standards for the management
of operational risk, which encompasses the controls and
processes at the service providers and the establishment
of service levels with the service providers, in the
following areas:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)

(d)  Operational risk (Continued)

° requirements for appropriate segregation of
duties between various functions, roles and
responsibilities;

o requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring
of the transactions;

o compliance with regulatory and other legal
requirements;

o documentation of controls and procedures;

o requirements for the periodic assessment of
operational risks faced, and the adequacy of
controls and procedures to address the risks
identified;

o contingency plans;

3 ethical and business standards; and

° risk mitigation, including insurance where this is
effective.

The directors’ assessment over the adequacy of the
controls and processes in place at the service providers
with respect to operational risks is carried out via regular
discussions with the service providers and a review of
the service providers’ reports on internal controls, where
available and practicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7. BIKRAKRER (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(2) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(a)

PRk E I B YR BUCR ()

2 ZBIAZAAEETE

Fair value of the Group’ financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each

reporting period. The following table gives information

about how the fair value of these financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the

valuation techniques and inputs used).

@ KAEFMEELL LB E
BEZARFEENEEERDE
BREALIEE

REBSHR ~EEET
MBEERMBRERAR
EBEFE - TREHRBRAN

o] &

E%EMGEERME

BEAREBEEZEMCLER
PR ERM R ARE)

Relationship
Valuation Significant of the significant
Fair value technique(s) unobservable input for
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input input(s) fair value
MEE  HERERER EXFTRE MEEEZRA
HHBEE RTZA=T-ENAARE £4 LD ¢4 LD ¢4 HENBE
2020 2019
- St 33 “2-NEF
Financial assets at FVTPL ~  Listed equity investmentin  Listed equity investment in
Hong Kong Hong Kong
- Tech Pro Technology Level 1 Quoted market bid priceinan  N/A /A
Development Limited active market
(stock code: 3823) HK$nil
- State Energy Group - State Energy Group Level 1 Quoted market bid priceinan  N/A NA
International Assets International Assets active market
Holdings Limited Holdings Limited
(stock code: 918) (stock code: 918)
HK$448,000 HK$nil
BAREE REBNLTRARE RERN LTRARE
TABEZ
B 5% X g . "
kil EENRREER BB BEVALITEEA @R A48
AT (RARE i
383) T
-B¥EBEREE -BREEAREE Ea 3 Gk AwAE )N MM Oyl
BRERAA BRERAE #E
(RERE : 918) (Bfn R : 918)
448,000 7 £
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re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(2) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

(a)

Fair value of the Group’ financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (Continued)

P ERER (&)

PRk E I B YR BUCR ()

(2 ZBIAZAAEETE(HF)

@ KAEFMEELL LB E
BEZARFEENEEERDE
BEALIEE (&)

Relationship
Valuation Significant of the significant

Fair value technique(s) unobservable input for
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input input(s) fair value

MEE fERTRER EXTTRE MEEEZRA
BBEE Rt=A=t-BWALEE EH PN ¢ BARE HENBE

2020 2019
- Jut 33 ZEnE

Financial assets at FVTPL ~ Unlisted equity Unlisted equity investmentsin ~ Level 3 Income approach - in this Discount rate 14.99%  10% increase (decrease) in

BAAEE
it AR
MHAE

investments in overseas

- E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd.
HK$4,535,340

RENELTRARE

- E-Com Holdings
Pte. Ltd.
45353007

Qoverseas

- E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd.
HK$10,906,777

BN L TRARE
~E-Com Holdings £=8
Pte. Ltd.

10906,777 ¢
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approach, the discounted

(2019: 18.30%)

cash flow method was

Used to capture the present
value of the expected future
economic benefits to be
derived from the ownership

of investee.

WAE—RIAES
HRRRREREENG
RXRENARARRE

Discount for lack
of marketability
("DLOM")
24.82% (2019;
17.40%)

B3 214.99%
(ZF-n%:
18.30%)

ERIARBER S

R

BZTBERD
BEE(Hz
e AR
Z1)24.82%
(ZZ-0&:
17.40%)

discount rate would result

in (decrease) increase in fair
value by (HK$355,933) and
HK$451,863 respectively
(2019: decrease HK$908,784
and increase HK$ 1,136,666
respectively).

10% increase (decrease) in DLOM
would result in (decrease)
increase in fair value by
(HK$148,770) and HK$ 147,375
respectively (2019 decrease
HK$253,965 and increase
HK$256,711 respectively).

EREEMHL) 10%RERR
BEAR (5) %0 (355,933
B70) 45186375 (28
—NE BRI 908,784 %
TREN1,136,666757T) °

Bz TR RER R (5
$)10% BEAABEAF
(BD) (148 7705 70) &
41358 (CE-NE:
PRI 2539657 7T RN
256,718 7) °
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RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(2) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

(a)

Fair value of the Group’ financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The management of the Group reviews the estimation
of fair value of the investments in unlisted equity which
is categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Fair values of the unlisted investments are determined
by the management with reference to the valuation
reports prepared by an independent professional valuer.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with the
management is held twice a year, for the Group’s interim
and annual reporting.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there were no transfers between financial instruments in
Level 1, 2 and 3.

7. MBEAREE (&)

PRk E I B YR BUCR ()

(2 @I AZAALEMETE(E)

(a)

AR F M BEL L B EE
BEZARFEENEEERDE
BEALIEE (&)

AEBHERRE

AEBEEBEZIRENIFE
ERBRANRREBEZ G
DERAAEBEFLANE=
A FEEMBRENAREES
HEEBK2EBIAER
EXMEETZHERERE -
BERESFRITMAMGER
T2 1 7 o M 4 o/ AN SR B
RN FEREZA -

HE_Z-_ZFR_F—HN
F+ZA=1T—HILFERN
CHMIEEE R E-_R
HAZE = % 2 R EEER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7. B EKEE (F)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) B 75 L B B 22 B Y R SR (4R
(2) Fair value measurement of financial instruments 2) ZBIAZAAEEE(E)

(Continued)

(a)  Fair value of the Group’ financial assets and financial (8) FBAREMHEENUDLIEEE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring B AREEFYHEER Y
basis (Continued) BEAAEEE)

Fair value hierarchy NABEEZR
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREERVZEREEA
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial REEFEZERIAZS
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to TR RAAEEZATBREE
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is DRE—ZBZHK) °
observable.
2020
It et 23
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-8R et =4 @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRABEFAER
ZUTBEE
Unlisted equity investment I EMRAKE - - 4,535,340 4,535,340
2019
—T-NEF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—1 F-HQ E={ Fehas
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRAABEFAER
ZHTBEE
Unlisted equity investment I EMRAEZE = = 10,906,777 10,906,777
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7. BBRREE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) B 75 L B B 22 B Y R SR (4R
(2) Fair value measurement of financial instruments 2 ZzBIAZAAEETE (&)
(Continued)
(b)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements b) ZFE=RALEBEFEHFK
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January R—H— 10,906,777 16,540,214
Unrealised loss recognised in RE=BERZARER
profit or loss 18 (6,242,542) (4,767,488)
Exchange loss, net M W 1R R 58 (128,895) (865,949)
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H 4,535,340 10,906,777
(c)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial () FKELFMEEELDNTIEE

liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (but fair value disclosure are required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

iE (ERELH AL EER
B AEEYBEEERY T
BEEALIEE

ARREFRRNEE M
BRAER M BEEENM
HREZREEEEQNE
BHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE
8. REVENUE AND NET OTHER INCOME, GAINS 8. WHEKEMEBA  WRZKEE
AND LOSSES RE

Yak R B A - Wk R ERFED T

An analysis of revenue and net other income, gains and losses is as

118

follows R
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue I 25 - =

Other income, gains and losses: H A - S REE -

Income from office sharing KELAHAE Z WA 67,500 240,000
Exchange loss, net b & 1E %5 (128,887) (867,970)
Interest income on rental deposit HE®ZRE 2 FBWA 317,519 85,925
Government subsidies BT B 216,000 =
Waiver of directors’ remuneration MEE = H 675,484 =
Sundry income E YA 4,182 752,632
1,151,798 210,587
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segments

The directors of the Company consider that the Group only has
single business segment, i.e. investment in financial assets at FVTPL.
It is not considered meaningful to provide a business segment
analysis of financial performance.

Geographical segments

The Group’s segment assets, which represent furniture, fixtures and
equipment, financial assets at FVTPL and cash and bank balance,
and liabilities which represent unsecured borrowings and corporate
bonds for the year, analysed by geographical markets, are as follows:

TREEH
¥HDE

ERIAGEEE —REHIR AR
ARABEFABRZMBEERE - K
REAEERRRHUBREZEB DR
DMBETK

hEDE

AEBFAZHBEE (BREEM KB

R BARBEAABRZMHEE
kBRe RIRTHES) LA (BREER
BERARESR) RWETSAFOT

2020

—E-FF
Singapore Hong Kong Total
37 0 3 BB @t
HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
Segment assets DEEE 4,535,340 616,180 5,151,520
Unallocated assets RO EE 148,404
Total assets BEBE 5,299,924
Segment liabilities HEAE - 113,762,603 113,762,603
Unallocated liabilities RKoLats 21,086,350
Total liabilities BfERE 134,848,953
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. 7HER (&)
Geographical segments (Continued) ih & 2 38 (48)
2019
—E-NEF
Singapore Hong Kong Total
N BB FEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Segment assets DEEE 10,906,777 160,039 11,066,816
Unallocated assets AOEEE 10,150,161
Total assets BEMAE 21,216,977
Segment liabilities SEEE = 100,654,179 100,654,179
Unallocated liabilities PN =K 16,930,236
Total liabilities BEBE

10. NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR

117,584,415

10. RAREBEFABRRZUHKE

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS EEEERE
2020 2019
—EZRF —E-NF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Unrealised gain arising on fair value ETRAEEAAEBE
changes of listed equity investments BEELE 2 ARER W 448,000 =
Unrealised loss arising on fair value FLEMRAREAABE
changes of unlisted equity investment BEEECAREEEBE (6,242,542) (4,767,488)
(5,794,542) (4,767,488)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

11. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 11. REEFE
2020 2019
i —E-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss from operations has been arrived at ~ #% 2 548 J5 48 H0BR (G A)
after charging (crediting): THEIBEGEH
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2R Bl & 250,000 280,000
Investment management fee HEERE - 2,220,000
Depreciation of furniture, fixtures and R RERZBEZITE
equipment - 1,513
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZITE 1,208,489 2,929,416
Exchange loss, net b B 18 F 5 128,887 867,970
Interest income on rental deposit HEZS 2 F BWA (317,519) (85,925)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 1% F i & = RUEE B 8,241,405 =
Net loss on financial assets at FVTPL BARBEF AR %
BEBBRFHR 5,794,542 4,767,488
Lease payments for short-term leases not 17zt ATHE B ETE &
included in the measurement of lease REAHEE CHENK
liabilities 348,215 1,907,608
Directors’ remuneration and staff costs ~ ZEE & & 8 TRKA
— salaries, allowance and other benefits —FE - RMEHMEY
in kind & 9,149,644 10,218,183
— contributions to MPF Scheme — R BTl K 94,725 102,895
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

12.

13.

FINANCE COSTS 12. BB ER
2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on: A2
— Loans from a director —EEFEZEXR 72,269 =
— Loans from the Ultimate Controlling —REREFI T ER
Party 369,744 624,447
— Loans from a licensed money lending ~ —IFEMBE AT ERK
company 800,000 873,411
— Loans from third parties —F=ZFER 1,770,331 6,270,617
— Overdue rent and management fee — e L EES 25,920 =
3,038,264 7,768,475
Effective interest on corporate bonds RAEHFERNE 5,966,080 5,839,059
Imputed interest on lease liabilities HEBGEHENES 896,938 907,807
9,901,282 14,515,341

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Thus, Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for both years
as the Group did not have any assessable profits.
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13.

FriS#i

BEMNSHMARG  AEREEEEBE2
BEBTHEANMNBES8.25% + MihiE2
BEBITHRARER165% - ~NFEF
SEMARHEROERE BN RF K E
B12165% 2 8l — B EBUKFIIE - AR
RAIEERRE  BHRMNSH MRS L&
LSRR A B HRRILEERNBR -
Bt - MEFERNEBFESHIRME
JERRFLHE A 2 16.5% 5T & -

P A 7 5= [ 70 % A {18 67 &2 I 488 (] FE SR
B A - A N % M EF R EE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FrEBimx< (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss FAMSHFAX EGE Bm LEMEH
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Wa R 2 BRTRIEIREERAT

comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019
—BEEBH —ET-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before tax B i AT S 18 (36,301,591) (43,673,836)
Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at REBNEHHE16.5%
the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) ZE-NF :16.5%)
SAEZBIA (5,989,762) (7,206,183)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DRI 2 2 TS s 8
for tax purpose 3,134,529 1,992,459
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBRBRAZ RIS E
for tax purpose (165,941) -
Tax effect on temporary differences RERETREZE BT E
not recognised - (92,363)
Tax effect on tax losses not recognised AERHIEEEZHETE 3,021,174 5,306,087
Income tax expense for the year FANRABRAXR - =
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated REEAR  RNEE 2 (G5t R fERTIEE
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$266,770,000 (2019: 1849 /5266,770,000/8 70 (=T — L4 ¢
approximately HK$248,460,000) to set off against future taxable #9248,460,00078 70) + A] FA LA SH R 3R
income. No deferred tax asset is recognised in respect of such tax JERTUA » R ARAES IR 5T DA R 2R fE
losses carried forward as the realisation of the related tax benefit RPN S IH AR SN 5 R E L
through future taxable profits could not be reasonably assessed. The AR I E R IE IE R IB B E o
tax losses do not have expiry date under the current tax legislation. BER TR L  BIBEBY EfEmEE o
The Group had no material unprovided deferred tax liabilities at the RIFEEAR » AN E&EF I E AT A KRB
end of the reporting period (2019: HK$nil). HBREEHBEAG(ZE—hTF : THT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
— ==l PLINA
bR e B R R M5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE
EEME

REBELEHRA - BERAGIIFE22E
383N AE (REEEMDER) R

14. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 14.

Disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, FE2EIWBELT ¢
are as follows:
(a) Directors’ emoluments and other benefit (a) EEMEREMER
Salaries,
allowance Employer's
and other  contributions
For the year ended BE-2-2FTZA benefits toMPF  Discretionary Total
31 December 2020 =T-HLEE Fee in kind Scheme bonuses  emoluments
§ie 2HR  RELHY
e HueENEN  zZEIHR BERL WemE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT B
Executive director HiTES
Chan Yiu Pun, Clement FRIEW (Fi3E2)

(Note 2) - 1,102,333 15,000 161,333 1,278,666
Xiao Yanming (Chairman) HYH (1E)

(Note 14) (FtsE14) 120,000 - 3,000 - 123,000
Non-executive directors FHTES
Hu Haisong (Note 6) g (H3te) 1,520,000 - - 200,000 1,720,000
Tung Shu Sun (Note 10) EHi% (W 10) 1,121,667 - - 146,667 1,268,334
Xiao Yanming B85

(Notes 7, 11 and 14) (P71 K 14) 148,000 - 4,400 - 152,400
Dang Yin Liang (Note 12) ERR (FrzEn2) 277,000 - - 30,000 307,000
Ding Shiguo (Note 6) Tt (fizko) - - - - -
Wong Tsz Wai (Note 7) BT (FizE7) 134,000 - 6,700 - 140,700
Li Ye (Note 13) ZE (fits13) 84,000 - 4,200 - 88,200
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Gui Shengyue (Note 5) HEAEH (FrEEs) - - - - -
Wang Xianzhang (Note 4) FEE (fitzEa) 223,000 - - 30,000 253,000
Vichai Phaisalakani AR (MR 1 R3)

(Notes 1and 3) 309,000 - - - 309,000
Lai Kim Fung (Note 8) BRI (MizEs) 40,000 - - - 40,000
Wang Zhonggu (Note 9) Tk (o) 35,667 - - - 35,667
Wong Yiu Kit, Emest (Note 15) =24 (M7 15) 10,000 - - - 10,000
Total emoluments WeaE 4,022,334 1,102,333 33,300 568,000 5,725,967
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

14. EEM < (&)

Directors’ emoluments and other benefit (Continued) ) EE=MEeREMER (&)
Salaries,
allowance Employer's
and other  contributions
For the year ended BE_Z-NF+_A benefits toMPF  Discretionary Total
31 December 2019 =+—-ALFE Fee in kind Scheme bonuses emoluments
Fe RER  wESHI
we EHEWRT  ZEIHR BT ek
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
BT B BT BT BT
Executive director BITES
Chan Yiu Pun, Clement B2 - 1,056,000 18,000 88,000 1,162,000
Non-executive directors FHTES
Hu Haisong e 2,400,000 - - 200,000 2,600,000
Tung Shu Sun (Chairman) g6 (2E) 960,000 - - 80,000 1,040,000
Dang Yin Liang BR 360,000 - - 30,000 390,000
Ding Shiguo Tt 360,000 - - 30,000 390,000
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors
Gui Shengyue EEH 360,000 - - 30,000 390,000
Wang Xianzhang IzE 360,000 - - 30,000 390,000
Vichai Phaisalakani (Note 1) FRRRHD (MY 1) 225,000 - - 25,000 250,000
Total emoluments el 5,05,000 1,056,000 18,000 513,000 6,612,000
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NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

14. EEME (B)

(a) Directors’ emoluments and other benefit (Continued)
Notes:
1. Resigned on 2 October 2019 and re-appointed on 23 January 2020.
2. Resigned on 1 November 2020.
3. Resigned on 1 December 2020.
4. Passed away on 14 August 2020.
5. Resigned on 15 June 2020.
6. Resigned on 18 August 2020.
7. Appointed as non-executive director on 18 August 2020.

8. Appointed on 1 September 2020.

9. Appointed on 14 September 2020.

10. Retired from Chairman on 15 September 2020.

11.  Appointed as the Chairlady on 15 September 2020.

12. Resigned on 7 October 2020.

13. Appointed on 7 October 2020.

14. Redesignated from an non-executive director to executive director on 2
November 2020.

15. Appointed on 1 December 2020.

Mr. Hu Haisong, Mr. Ding Shiguo and Mr. Gui Shengyue
agreed to waive all the director’s fees and bonus payable
to them of approximately HK$3,120,000 (including
approximately HK$1,400,000 payable as at 31 December
2019), HK$723,000 (including approximately HK$465,000
payable as at 31 December 2019) and HK$390,000 (including
approximately HK$210,000 payable as at 31 December 2019)
respectively during the year. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

No other significant transactions, arrangement and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year (2019: HK$nil).

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020

(a)

EsMeREMER (&)
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RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included three directors (2019: three directors), details of whose
emoluments are set out in Note 14 above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2019: two) highest paid employees who are not a
director of the Company are as follows:

15.

hIEBREMEES

FR AEELEREHERERE=%
BER(CTNF =REF)  BFM
SRAEN EXHFE 14 -EBRE (ZF
—hF mB)EEHEEENME GF
RRBEF)WMT -

2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Basic salaries and other benefits HEARH & M EtEF 2,189,000 2,273,205
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 260,000 190,000
Contributions to MPF schemes BB EIHR 31,500 34,500
Total emoluments B < 4858 2,480,500 2,497,705
Emoluments bands < i =
2020 2019
—z-2F —E-hE
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEHHE EE&H
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 =% T2 1,000,000 7% 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 Bt E
1,500,000 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 BT E
2,000,000 78 7T 1 -
2 2

During the year, no remuneration (2019: HK$nil) was paid by the
Group to any of the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

During the year, no share options to subscribe for ordinary shares
of the Company were granted to employees under the Company’s
share option scheme (2019: nil).

FAAEEHRERNEASEEHAL
NEAME (ZF—NF: TET)ER
WEIIMARKE 2 RS S RERAE -

FR - REARFNERETS - A0

AIMER TR B RE T BB RE
“T-NFE) e
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- =+ VN
iR B ISR M aE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE
16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the year (2019: HK$nil).

17. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

16.

17.

’E
R B R B IR Y SR S IR AE (T

REFTARQREBEIBRE (ZE—NF:
TH) -

BRER

RABHREAEBEERERNREEER
TIRBA TEEAERL

2020 2019
i —E-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per FiztEZREREIE ZEE
share
Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ ANA B #EA A BIGFEANEE
of the Company 36,301,591 43,673,836
Number of shares v ¢
Number of ordinary shares for the REstEBIRER
purpose of basic loss per share ez Limik e e 1,803,558,784 1,803,558,784

The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as there
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E — T _ZF+-_A=-+—HIFE

18. FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT 18. & - KERRE
Leasehold Furniture Office
improvements  and fixtures equipment Total
HENEEE GRREE BAERME @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
CoST AR
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZ=Z—-hNF—HA—H"
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —EF—AF+=A=1+—-H "
“Z-ZF-F-Ak
“E-FE+-A=+—H - 826,148 528,585 1,354,733
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND B HERFE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-N$—HA—H - 826,148 527,072 1,353,220
Charge for the year AEENHK - - 1,513 1,513
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 ~ R=F-AF+=-A=1—H
and 31 December 2020 “Z-ZE-F-HR
e e i = - 826,148 528,585 1,354,733
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2020 RN_E_FTF+-_A=+—H - - - -
At 31 December 2019 R-E-N&+-A=+—H = = = =
During the year, the directors of the Company considered that no ERN - RNRNAIEERE 5§*ﬁ‘?jﬁ1§ﬁ‘[\
impairment loss is required for the furniture, fixtures and equipment EERERENEE (S —NLTE : TF

19.

(2019: HK$nil).

JT) °

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19. B A ABEN ABE UK E

PROFIT OR LOSS E
2020 2019
—EEF —ZE-hEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current asset: FRBEE :
— Unlisted equity investments in —RBINE BT 2 IRAIRE
overseas (Note a) (FfsEa) 4,535,340 10,906,777
Current assets: REEE :
Equity investments listed in REE LM ZRARE
Hong Kong (Note b) (Mt&ED) 448,000 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The Group had the following investments:

As at 31 December 2020

19.

7

)

\

B
E (4

piitl)

REBBEA TNIIZKE -

R-ZZE-_EF+-A=+—H

BEFABSE2UKE

Unrealised Net assets Dividend
Place of Effective gain (loss) attributable received/
Name of investee registration/ Number of  shareholding Carrying arising on Exchange  Fairvalue/ tothe receivable
Notes company incorporation  shares held interest amount  revaluation loss marketvalue investments during the year
EftfEE
B/ g0 B bES L] MER/ REEE  FRER/
Wit BRRELALE  HIsE L RiEgz ROE K&(5R) EifH mEEE  KEFE  EURS
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT Bn An Br
(a) E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore 1,259,607 2370% 10906777 (6,242,542 (128,895) 4,535,340 5,651,670 -
E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. 57705
(b)  State Energy International Bermuda 896,000 0.12% - 443,000 - 448,000 48384 -
Assets Holdings
AREBEREERR ARE
BRAT]
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

19. RAREBESARSZUKE

E (%)

R=B-nE+=A=+-8

Unrealised Net assets Dividend
Place of Effective gain (loss) attributable received/
Name of investee registration/ Number of  shareholding Camying arising on Exchange Fair value/ tothe receivable
Notes  company incorporation shares held interest amount  revaluation loss  marketvalue investments  during the year
BftfEE
B/ Fifsik{n G LRER MEE/ REEE  FRER/
i BERRERAER  HHH #A RiEEs BEE  KE(ER) EXER mERE  AEFE  EURE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT AT BT
(a) E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore 1,259,607 23.70% 16,540,214 (4,767,488) (865,949) 10,906,777 4,547,974 -
E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd.  #15%
(b) Tech ProTechnology ~ Caymanlslands 17,634,000 0.22% - - - - - -
Development Limited
EENRERARAT REES
(@} State Energy International Bermuda 896,000 0.12% - - - - - -

Assets Holdings Limited
AvEBEREAERR ARE
BRAR

SAREKEERAR/ FH 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E - S -ZF+_A=-+—HIFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“E-Com”) is a private company incorporated in
Singapore, which is principally engaged in the provision of Chinese e-learning
platforms for primary school students in Singapore and other Asian regions. No
dividend was declared or received during the year (2019: HK$nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the unaudited consolidated net profit
was approximately $$941,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,296,000)
(2019: audited consolidated net profit approximately S$325,000, equivalent
to approximately HK$1,870,000). As at 31 December 2020, its unaudited
consolidated net assets were approximately $$4,065,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$23,847,000) (2019: audited consolidated net assets
approximately S$3,687,000, equivalent to approximately HK$21,361,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held more than 20% of the
effective shareholding interest in E-Com. The investment in E-Com was
not accounted for as associate as the Group does not have any significant
influence over the financial and operating policies in E-Com or participate in the
policymaking processes. Accordingly, investment in E-Com has been designated
upon initial recognition as a financial asset at FVTPL.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in the shares of E-Com exceeded 10% of the total assets of the Group.

Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (“Tech Pro”) (Stock code: 3823)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. It is principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of LED lighting products and accessories, provision of
energy efficiency projects, promotion and development of a professional football
club, and provision of property leasing and sub-leasing services.

The Stock Exchange has suspended the trading of Tech Pro’s shares since
9 November 2017. Also, the Stock Exchange announced that the listing of
Tech Pro’s shares was cancelled with effect from 9:00 am on 2 March 2020.
Therefore, it is considered that the market value of Tech Pro is HK$nil as at 31
December 2019 and was written off as at 31 December 2020.

State Energy Group International Assets Holdings Limited (“State En Assets”)
(Stock code: 918) was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. It is principally
engaged in the sourcing, marketing and selling of garments, and property
investments. No dividend was declared or received during the year (2019:
HK$Nil). State En Assets’ shares trading has been suspended on 1 February 2019
and been resumed trading on 7 December 2020.

For the six months ended 30 September 2020, the unaudited consolidated
net profit attributable to owners of State En Assets was approximately
HK$7,636,000 (31 March 2020: audited consolidated net profit approximately
HK$10,925,000) and the basic earnings per share was HK0.85 cents (31 March
2020: basic earnings per share was HK1.21 cents). At 30 September 2020, the
unaudited consolidated net asset value was approximately HK$40,320,000 (31
March 2020: audited consolidation net assets approximately HK$32,968,000).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in the shares of State En Assets was less than 10% of the total assets of the
Group.
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19. BAREBETFABZEZUKE
= ()

fa -

(a)

E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. ([ E-Com |) FAFf 1N
AMRZ 2 FLARE] - EERFRITNKLA
HAd MR 2 /NE AR AR EE T A
B - FABESRIMBRE (ZE—NEF:
THT) °

BHE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=1+—RHILFE "' X
ﬁ«‘%%%%‘ FIEE EE 49 941,000 N3 T (48
475,296,000 7T) (= — NG : LFZ
,ﬁ%‘é.\?‘r\ EFEEH9 325,000 FIN# TT - FHERLY
1 870,00087T) S R=_F_ZTF+_-_A=1+—
R ERIEE GRS B EF 14,065,000
%ﬁﬂﬂfﬁm (FE1 4923,847,0008 L) (=
—NF : FEZIRA A EFTEL 3,687,000 %7
T - FHER 421,361,000 7T) ©

RIRE IR - ANE B R E-Com A RH AR E
258 20% ° ME-ComMIRETE AR A
AR EAARNEBRE-Com MBI REE
BRREEMEATERDEEIRKIBIE o
B - FRE-Com W& & ¥ X TR 18 JE A 1R
AABEFABSEZMBEE -

R=Z_TER = NFF=H=-H
AREE R E-Com J]ﬂé%‘ Z RE{EBBASE
BMWAEE10% °

REPRERARAA ([EE] - BROKSE:
3823) NASESEMK L AEREERT
ERA - HRONBRZM LT - HXBHRE
B3 IS4 LED FRBAE m R FE ¢ © 1R ML ETRE
HE - HERERBE R RELEIARREH
MEBE RS HERS

BRABEE-T—+tF+— )EULELE?@E
Eﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ IEAN - B R T AR EBUE R T
Eﬁtfﬁtﬁu’éf777¢ A= EU:
-T—jLEqIEtixﬁ Hit - A=
A=+—HB BLmEEEHRARA
WHRZZT_TF+_A=+—HaF#H-

BB EERR AR A ([ EEEE
BE| ROKIRE : 918) RAFEZMAKL
RERPERAMERR  HBRONBIZM L
e EEXBRFIRKZIRE - mGHEEKLE
EARDERE - i?ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁwﬁlﬁﬂﬂﬂ
RE(ZF—NF: L) - HEREE
ZBROER=F-NF=_A— Eliﬁf“é“;jf
R-Z_ZF+_HEAREEE -

HE-Z-_THEAA=TAHIANEA B
BREERES AEIE 2 RCEBXREFEFE
i’]?%7636000/%7t(7—‘,7—‘,¢ B ==

AREAZ AR S FBF B8 494 10,925,000 75
n)&th%KEﬂﬁossﬁmuﬁf
F=A=+—H:8REAXBHNE1.2175
i) - R=F=_FTFAA=TH ' KEFZHE
AEEFELAA40,320,0008 L (ZTE=F
FZA=1+—H EBEXGEEEFENA
32,968,000/ 7C) °

i fi& —NE+=A=t—H"
ZIS$IEAI mééﬂxﬁéﬁé\ ZEREED
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19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 %=

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The investments in listed and unlisted equity investment at 31
December 2020 and 2019 were, upon initial recognition, recognised
by the Group as financial assets at FVTPL. Their performances are
regularly reviewed by the key management personnel of the Group.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment was assessed by the
directors of the Company with reference to the professional
valuation carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer.

The market value of listed equity investments were determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock
Exchange at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

—E_TF+RA=T—HILFE

19. BAREBETFABZEZUKE

E (&’
RZF-_FTFR_F—

S nNE+=-A
=+t BZRENEMEIELMERAR

ERNFERAFHAREERSEAR

BEFABDZIMBEE -
RREGAAKREZEEE

A e

FLETEAREZRAR

REBEZ
B A8 TR

LEEHHARA

%ﬁ&“%%ﬁi BREXMEMRE

HEBAR A

TRZEXGEERE °

EHBRAREZTSEEIRER _-F
—RER_F-NF+_A=+—BR

B2 P2 5

20. HiEUW R

BEAREETE -

CRERFENTER

2020 2019
—EEHF —ET—NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Non-current asset ERBEE
Rental deposit HEEe 60,693 944,859

Current assets REBEE

Other receivables H i fE YT FR 2,317,265 2,657,265
Less: allowance for credit loss o 5 AE R (2,317,127) (2,317,127)
138 340,138
Rental and utility deposits HekKkERZE 3,250 43,150
Prepayments TE{TRIE 84,323 33,765
87,711 417,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 21. FREEE
Premises
LIES
HK$
BT
Cost B A
At 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—H—H -
Addition NE 11,717,665
At 31 December 2019 and RZZBE-—NF+ZA=+—8K
1 January 2020 —E-TF—A—H 11,717,665
Addition NE 727,017
Termination of lease wIFEE (82,575)
Impairment BIE (12,362,107)
At 31 December 2020 R=-B=-ZF+=-A=+—8 -
Accumulated depreciation AItIE
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-—hF—H—H =
Charge for the year AREE R 2,929,416
As at 31 December 2019 and RZEBE—NF+A=+—8k
1 January 2020 —ET-TF—-H—H 2,929,416
Charge for the year RNEFEHR 1,208,489
Termination of lease BIETHE (17,203)
Impairment B (4,120,702)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZEHF+=-A=+—H -
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZEHF+=-HA=+—H -
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

The Group leases offices for its operations. Lease contract is entered
into for fixed term of 2 years and 3 years. Lease term is negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the

contract is enforceable.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in

note 26.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

22. B RBITLEER

2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deposits with banks RITIFHK 167,960 156,274
Cash in hand BERE 220 3,765
168,180 160,039
23. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 23. ENSZEREREEH
2020 2019
—E-%F —F-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Accrued expenses THIRE A 11,274,868 7,648,346
Other payables H th fE 5 5/ I8 430,000 430,000
11,704,868 8,078,346
24. UNSECURED BORROWINGS 24. BIERGEE
2020 2019
—mo®F —E-hE
Notes HK$ HK$
B BT BT
Current liabilities REBAE
— Loans from a director —EEEX a 72,269 =
— Loans from the Ultimate — IR E| T E
Controlling Party b - 11,803,639
— Loan from a licensed money —FEREATER
lending company 8,587,713 7,987,713
— Loans from third parties —FB=ZFER 29,046,129 7,688,672
37,706,111 27,480,024
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
— Loans from third parties —FE=FEXR d - 3,083,743
37,706,111 30,563,767

SAKRESEFRAR /FH 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E - S -ZF+_A=-+—HIFE

24. UNSECURED BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:
(a) Loans from a director

During the year, there were loans from a director of HK$3,300,000 (2019:
HK$nil) and loan interest payable of approximately HK$72,000 (2019: HK$nil).
The loans were obtained from a director, Dr. Xiao Yanming (“Dr. Xiao"), on an
unsecured basis, bearing fixed interest at 10% per annum and repayable within
one year. The loans from Dr. Xiao was assigned to an independent third party on
31 December 2020.

(b) Loans from the Ultimate Controlling Party

The loans included loans advanced of approximately HK$nil (2019:
approximately HK$10,560,000) and loan interest payable of approximately
HK$nil (2019: approximately HK$1,243,000). The loans were obtained from the
Ultimate Controlling Party, on an unsecured basis, bearing fixed interest at 6%
per annum and repayable within one year. The loans from Ultimate Controlling
Party was assigned to an independent third party on 1 August 2020.

(c) Loan from a licensed money lending company

The loan was due to an independent licensed money lending company, bearing
fixed interest rate at 10% per annum for a term of one year. The effective
interest rate was 11.23% (2019: 11.23%) per annum. The loan was fully settled
in February 2021.

(d) Loans from third parties
The loans were due to independent third parties, bearing fixed interest rate at

6% to 16% (2019: 6% to 16%) per annum. The effective interest rate was in
the range of 8.78% to 16% (2019: 8.78% to 16%) per annum.

An analysis of unsecured borrowings presented based on the
repayment terms is as follows:

4. BIEHEE (&)
Wi
@ EB2EXR

RER - —BESZE3,300,0008 T (=F
—NEF: ?ﬁén)&réﬁ%f A B 4972,000
BE(ZE—NEF:THT) - BEEHUHA
B (THEL]) RENERERR - &
EFFEI10% T ERR—FAEE - HiFEL
ZEFR-_E_TFE+_A=+—HEZET

o —

BUE=T
(b) BREHFER

ERBRERERNEBT(ZE—NF 4
10,560,000,%79 &%ﬁﬁ%ﬁm%l BHTHETT
—E— N5 1 £1,243,00087T) ° KARK
Eﬂﬁm%ﬂﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ 12 [E E & A=
6% 5T B RAER —FREE - REKEHIFER
RZE_ZTFNA— E@&?ﬁ4% 7 e

(0 FEREQARER

BRCREABFEMERR - REEFFIR

o%.ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ FBRFNER11.23%
(ZE—N5F: 1123%) CBRER=T=—
FZAREES -

(d EH=FHEXR

BRREABLE=H RETEFHNE6%E
16% (ZZ—NF : 6% ZE16%) 5t B - BIF
FHEE878% £ 16% (ZF—NF :8.78%
£16% ) °
RIBE KGR - BB ZEESTE5
m

At 31 December At 31 December
2020 2019
A=B=BE  R-TNF
+=B=+—H +—-—A=+—H

HK$ HK$
BT BT
The carrying amounts of the above N EREEBEZREE :
borrowings were repayable:
Within one year —FR 37,706,111 27,480,024
Within a period of more than one year ~ HBBE—FRETZBRENR
but not exceeding two years - 3,083,743
37,706,111 30,563,767
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

25. CORPORATE BONDS 25. A EIfEH
The corporate bonds (“Bond(s)"”) recognised in the consolidated BN eMERARZARES (B
statement of financial position were calculated as follows: FDFENT :

Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted

bond bond bond bond bond bond bond bond
("Bond ") ("BondII")  ("BondII) ~ ("Bond IV") ~ (“Bond V")  ("Bond VI")  ("Bond VII") ("Bond VIII") Total

FLmES  FInES  ALnEE  ELTEE  ELTER  ELREE  FLARS  FLAES
(MB%1)  (&HN) (&S0 (®HV)  (RHV)  (®HV) (@S] (TEHWN) it

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT B o BT o BT
(note a) (noteh) (note ¢) (note d) (notee) (notef) (note g) (note h)

(W)  (Wib)  (Wiko  (Wikd) (Mo (W) (W)  (Wih)

At 1 January 2019 R=E-NE-F-F 10178980 2571693 9183057 9779214 9034773 8826680 8401328 - 51975737
Principal value of the Bonds  (E41 XA 2 A28

on inital recognition - - - - - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Direct transaction costs ~~ ERRAMA - - - - - - - (1650,000) (1,650,000}

10178986 2571693 9183057 9779214 9034773 886686 8401328 8350000 66325737

Effective interest evpenses ~ EBFISHR 858907 29905 978733 842489 6308 656509 %6764 606 583909
Interest paid s (600000) (74384 (7000000  (700,000) - - - - (07438
At31 December 2019and  R-F-AFT-F=1-H

1 January 2020 FoE-ZE-F-H 10437893 277024 9461790 9921703 9669831 9483195 9368092 8970694  70,090412
Ffective interest expenses ~ EBFE T 806643 20452 1009581 858938 6472 668342 98605 697280 5966080

At31December200  R-Z-Ef

tZA=1-H 1244536 3071736 10471371 10780641 10314553 10151537 10354144 9,667,974 76,056,492
Analysed a5 MR-
Current ik 1,244,536 225,616 700,000 700000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,600,000 500,000 6,970,152
Non-current E k) 10000000 2846120 9771371 10080641 9314553 9151537 8754144 9167974 69,086,340
Total oH] 11,204,536 307736 104713711 10,780,641 10314553 10,151,537 10,354,144 9,667,974 76,056,492
The effective interest rate of the Bond |, II, Ill, IV, V, VI, VIl and VIIl are BEEI NIV -V Vs VIERVIEZ
8.63%, 21.58%, 10.73%, 8.85%, 6.99%, 7.38%, 11.22% and ERFFEDF A8.63% *21.58% *
8.00% per annum respectively. 10.73% * 8.85% * 6.99% * 7.38%

11.22% %.8.00% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN b

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E - S -ZF+_A=-+—HIFE

25. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate bond to an
independent private investor through the placing agent at a principal amount
of HK$10,000,000 with effective date from 29 January 2015 which is repayable
on the date falling 3 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which
is 29 January 2018. During the year of 2019, the Company has entered into
an extension corporate bond agreement to extend the maturity date of Bond |
from 29 January 2018 to 29 January 2020 with interest rate changed from 5%
to 6% per annum starting from 30 January 2018. During the year of 2020, the
Company has entered into an extension corporate bond agreement to extend
the maturity date of Bond | from 29 January 2020 to 28 January 2022 (the
“Maturity Date 1”) with interest rate changed from 6% to 7% per annum
starting from 29 January 2020.

Bond | carries a fixed interest rate at 7% per annum for the period from 29
January 2020 to 28 January 2022, 6% per annum for the period from 30
January 2018 to 29 January 2020 and 5% per annum before 30 January 2018
payable annually in arrears on 29 January in each year (“Interest Payment Date
1”), provided that the first Interest Payment Date | shall fall on 29 January 2016
and the final repayment of the interest shall be on the Maturity Date I.

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate bond to an
independent private investor through the placing agent at a principal amount of
HK$3,000,000 with effective date from 17 March 2015 which is repayable on
the date falling 7 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which is 17
March 2022 (the “Maturity Date I1").

Bond Il carries a fixed interest rate at 5% per annum payable semi-annually in
arrears on 17 March and 17 September in each year (“Interest Payment Date
11”), provided that the first Interest Payment Date Il shall fall on 17 September
2015 and the final repayment of the interest shall be on the Maturity Date II.

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate bond to an
independent private investor through the placing agent at a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 with effective date from 15 July 2015 which is repayable on the
date falling 7 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which is 15 July
2022 (the “Maturity Date Ill”).

Bond IIl carries a fixed interest rate at 7% per annum payable annually in arrears
on 15 July in each year (“Interest Payment Date IlI"), provided that the first
Interest Payment Date Il shall fall on 15 July 2016 and the final repayment of the
interest shall be on the Maturity Date Il.

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate bond to an
independent private investor through the placing agent at a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 with effective date from 13 April 2016 which is repayable on
the date falling 7 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which is 13
April 2023 (the “Maturity Date IV").

Bond IV carries a fixed interest rate at 7% per annum payable annually in arrears
on 13 April in each year (“Interest Payment Date IV"”), provided that the first
Interest Payment Date IV shall fall on 13 April 2017 and the final repayment of
the interest shall be on the Maturity Date IV.
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25. A EIfESH (&)
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(a)

BRIF  NAREBRERER BB LA
AR EE BT T 4458 10,000,000 75 T K
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ZM‘JE;J_L RAIEHFEHEMN R &
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25. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate bond to an
independent private investor through the placing agent at a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 with effective date from 13 September 2018 which is repayable
on the date falling 7 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which
is 13 September 2025 (the “Maturity Date V").

Bond V carries a fixed interest rate at 5% per annum payable annually in arrears
on 13 September in each year (“Interest Payment Date V"), provided that
the first Interest Payment Date V shall fall on 13 September 2020 and the final
repayment of the interest shall be on the Maturity Date V.

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate bond to an
independent private investor through the placing agent at a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 with effective date from 21 September 2018 which is repayable
on the date falling 7 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which
is 21 September 2025 (the “Maturity Date VI").

Bond VI carries a fixed interest rate at 5% per annum payable annually in arrears
on 21 September in each year (“Interest Payment Date VI”), provided that
the first Interest Payment Date VI shall fall on 21 September 2020 and the final
repayment of the interest shall be on the Maturity Date VI.

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate bond to an
independent private investor through the placing agent at a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 with effective date from 11 December 2018 which is repayable
on the date falling 7 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which
is 11 December 2025 (the “Maturity Date VII").

Bond VIl carries a fixed interest rate at 8% per annum payable annually in arrears
on 11 December in each year (“Interest Payment Date VII”), provided that
the first Interest Payment Date VII shall fall on 11 December 2019 and the final
repayment of the interest shall be on the Maturity Date VII.

During last year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate bond to an
independent private investor through the placing agent at a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 with effective date from 1 February 2019 which is repayable on
the date falling 7 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which is 2
February 2026 (the “Maturity Date VIII").

Bond VIII carries a fixed interest rate at 5% per annum payable annually in
arrears on 1 February in each year (“Interest Payment Date VIII"“), provided
that the first Interest Payment Date VIl shall fall on 1 February 2020 and the final
repayment of the interest shall be on the Maturity Date VIII.

On initial recognition and subsequent measurements, the directors

of the Company consider that the principal amount of Bonds

approximate to their fair values.
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES

ancial Statements

+ZA=+—HILFE

26. HE&SE

2020 2019
—EEF —N4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —F R 8,188,237 3,646,789
Within a period of more than one year ~ AH—F L £ - BRBBEME
but not more than two years 1,193,245 4,101,975
Within a period of more than two years &AM EIA £ - BRBBE AT
but not more than five years - 1,103,126
9,381,482 8,851,890
Less: Amount due for settlement within & : ZHHERBI B E 2R+ —E A
12 months shown under current liabilities A2 Hi4E & ~ 718 (8,188,237) (3,646,789)
Amount due for settlement after SIEIERBIREZ
12 months shown under Mm@ A%
non-current liabilities BIHR&EE 2 /I8 1,193,245 5,205,101
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BZA
Number of
ordinary shares of
HK$0.0125 each HK$
SREE
0.0125% T
ZEREE BT

Authorised:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019,
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019,
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020
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28. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES FROM 28. MEERDELEABENYHIER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRFFMYHAE BB R B E 4
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. MEEEs BREeRIFRCET -
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash BMESTHEANBEEERNAEELIRE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s HeREaRIEAME TR REMNNR
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing EHMEXRRBERE °
activities.
Unsecured Corporate Lease
borrowings bonds liabilities Total
EEAEE AFEF HEEE Mgt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT o BT BT
At 1 January 2019 R-E-N&—A—H 25,991,247 57,975,737 - 83,966,984
Changes from financing cash flows: HERERELY
Corporate bonds interest paid RAElEH MBS - (2,074,384) = (2,074,384)
Loans interest paid ERFELM (1,184,433) - - (1,184,433)
Net proceeds from issue of BORREFIAE
corporate bonds WIEFE - - 8,350,000 - 8,350,000
Net proceeds from unsecured loans ERREEMERBEE 50,988,478 - - 50,988,478
Repayment of unsecured loans EBERAMESR (53,000,000) = - (53,000,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEERE - - (2,999,808) (2,999,808)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ RIEH &R EE B L% (3,195,955) 6,275,616 (2,999,808) 79,853
Other change: A2
New lease entered AV HAE = = 10,943,891 10,943,891
Interest expenses (Note 12) FEFE (HE12) 7,768,475 5,839,059 907,807 14,515,341
Total other changes HtnEgas 7,768,475 5,839,059 11,851,698 25,459,232
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NF+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2020 k=—F-_TF—H—H 30,563,767 70,090,412 8,851,890 109,506,069
Changes from financing cash flows: MERERES
Loans interest paid LCEll-San (200,000) - - (200,000)
Net proceeds from unsecured loans BEREEZMGHRAFE 24,330,000 - - 24,330,000
Repayment of unsecured loans ERERREE (20,000,000) - - (20,000,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE
— interest element —FEEH - - (215,564) (215,564)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMEAE
— principal element S Xe1v) - - (798,187) (798,187)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BYEB &R E & FH B 4,130,000 - (1,013,750) 3,116,250
Other change: HiZg) -
New lease entered M LBE - - 711,958 711,958
Termination of lease BIEHE - - (65,554) (65,554)
Interest expenses (Note 12) FEF% (MEE12) 3,012,344 5,966,080 896,938 9,875,362
Total other changes Hi2a)esm 3,012,344 5,966,080 1,543,342 10,521,766
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-E&+-A=1+-H 37,706,111 76,056,492 9,381,482 123,144,085
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. IBIRAESTE

142

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by members of the Company on 22 May 2015. The purpose of the
Scheme is to reward and provide incentives to eligible participants
and encourage them to contribute to the Group. Under the Scheme,
the Board may at their discretion, at any time following the date of
the adoption of the Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that
date, grant share options to eligible participants, including directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries and any other persons including
consultants, advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe
for shares in the Company.

The exercise price of share options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer of the grant and the average closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an option shall
be deemed to have been accepted within 30 days from the date
of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee
together with a remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of
securities available for issue under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement
of each grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
ordinary shares in issue of the Company. The option period will not
be more than ten years from the date of grant of the option and the
Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which
the option has to be held or other restriction before the exercise of
the subscription right attaching thereon.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no option was
granted, exercised or cancelled.

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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30.

31.

32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 %=

NET LIABILITY VALUE PER SHARE

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the net liability value per share
of the Company were HK$0.0718 and HK$0.0534 respectively.
The net liability value per share is calculated by dividing the net
liabilities in the consolidated financial position of approximately
HK$129,549,000 (2019: approximately HK$96,367,000) by the
number of 1,803,558,784 (2019: 1,803,558,784) ordinary shares in
issue at 31 December 2020.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, no margin facility (2019: HK$nil)
from a regulated securities broker was granted to the Group under
which financial assets at FVTPL of HK$448,000 (2019: HK$nil) were
treated as collateral for the facilities granted.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 (2019: HK$30,000). Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the sum of approximately
HK$95,000 (2019: approximately HK$103,000) represents
contributions payable to the MPF scheme in Hong Kong.
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 33. AEFKE
(a) Transactions @ X5

The Group had the following significant related party

transactions during the year:

AEENFRAEANBESRS

Name of related party Nature of transaction 2020 2019
BEL AR REZHE —E-EF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
Fortune Legendary Investment management fee
(Note 1) - 2,220,000
B & R REEEE (KMHzE1)
Income from office sharing (Note 2) (67,500) (240,000)
REHABRAE 2 WA (FEE2)
Dr. Xiao Loan interest expenses (Note 3) 72,269 -
Higt ENFERZ (MF3)
The Ultimate Controlling Party ~ Loan interest expenses (Note 4) 369,744 624,447

ARSI T

Notes:

(1)

EFRAMEHx (E4)

Pursuant to the investment management agreement dated 27 March
2014 made between Fortune Legendary and the Company.

On 5 July 2017, the Company entered into the supplemental agreement
with Fortune Legendary to revise the fee to a monthly fixed investment
management fee of HK$185,000 for the period from 5 July 2017 to 31
December 2019.

Fortune Legendary is deemed to be a connected party of the Group
pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules.

On 1 September 2017, the Company entered into a supplemental
licence agreement with Fortune Legendary to revised the monthly office
sharing fee from HK$11,733 to HK$75,000.

On 1 November 2018, the Company entered into a supplemental licence
agreement with Fortune Legendary to revised the monthly office sharing
fee from HK$75,000 to HK$20,000.

The licence agreement was terminated on 13 April 2020.

The loans from the director - Dr. Xiao were unsecured and repayable
within one year with fixed interest rate at 10% per annum. All loan
principal was assigned to an independent third party on 31 December
2020. Details are set out in note 24(a) of the consolidated financial
statements.

The loans from the Ultimate Controlling Party were unsecured and
repayable within one year with fixed interest rate at 6% per annum. The
loans were assigned to an independent third party on 1 August 2020.
Details are set out in note 24(b) of the consolidated financial statements.
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

(0

Balances

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts due from/(to)

33. BELHE (&)

(b) #g

REEHR - U () BEETS

related parties are as follows: IR ¢
Name of related party Nature of balance 2020 2019
HESER ERME —E-ERF —E-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fortune Legendary Other receivables
— Income from office
sharing receivable - 280,000
B & SR H A e R IE
—REYREHBRAEZHA
Accrued expenses
— Investment management
fee payable (577,500) (925,000)
B EH
—ENREERE
Dr. Xiao Loan interest incurred from
a director (72,269) -
HiEt BEREEZERNE

The Ultimate Controlling Party

RAHES T3

Loans and interest incurred from
the Ultimate Controlling Party
RRIEH FEEZERKRFE

Compensation of key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel, including

(11,803,639)

() EEEEAESHME

TREBEAEBZHME (BEXNT

amounts paid to the directors of the Company is as follows: RAREFZHFH)WT :
2020 2019
—E-BHF —E-NF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Directors’ fee EEH8E 4,022,334 5,025,000

Salaries, allowance and other e EEREMEYET

benefits in kind 1,102,333 1,056,000
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 568,000 513,000
Contributions to MPF Scheme RIS T &K 33,300 18,000
5,725,967 6,612,000

SHREKERRAF / FH 2020

145



146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 — T - F+-A=+—HIFE

34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 34. RK B AT 2
Details of the subsidiaries are set out as follows: B ARFBLT
Paid up/
issued
registered
Name of Place of ordinary Proportion ownership interest and Principal
subsidiary incorporation share capital voting power held by the Company activities
BRR/BRfT
WEAR %R RE A R L 4 2 dMEEREAR RRARRCERREERRRRLA TEXK

Directly  Indirectly Directly ~ Indirectly
E# S B S

2020 2020 2019 2019
SBoRF CECRF CTONF ZEAR
% % % %
Gold Basin Invest Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
&k 1B RAER
King Phoenix Investments Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
RERKES 1%7 RAER
Energy Supreme Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
RERKES 1%7 RAER
Fortuneway Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
RERKES 1%7T RAER
Sunluck Investment Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
RERKES 1%7 RAER
Winning Point Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 - 100 = 100 Inactive
RERKES 1%7T LT
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding during NGRS RERR  HEMEA
or at the end of reporting period. AIAEEREREREZEBRES

Goldstone Investment Group Limited / Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Hil 2 — T - F+-A=1T—HIFE

35. COMPANY INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL 35. AR BEMRRBER
POSITION
(a) Financial information of the financial position of the () ARAAHBEMRRARZBHEER
Company
2020 2019
—E-FHF —T—NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB AR ZI&E - =
Furniture, fixtures and equipment Xl « £ & K& - =
Financial assets at fair value through #Z QAR BEFFAEZRZ
profit or loss 5 EE 4,535,340 10,906,777
Rental deposits HERE 60,693 944,859
Right-of-use assets EREAE - 8,788,249
4,596,033 20,639,885
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through 2R EBEF ABR 2
profit and loss B & 448,000 =
Other receivables, deposits and Hih K - e Rk
prepayments TR RIE 87,711 391,040
Cash and bank balances B e MIR1TE S 128,816 77,274
664,527 468,314
Current liabilities REEE
Creditors and accrued expenses R FRIENTEIRE B 8,208,563 6,819,368
Unsecured borrowings (Note 24) AR E R (T EE24) 37,706,111 27,480,024
Corporate bonds (Note 25) RAlfES (ML 25) 6,970,152 12,313,303
Lease liabilities HEBE 8,188,237 3,646,789
61,073,063 50,259,484
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (60,408,536) (49,791,170)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZ BRI EE (55,812,503) (29,151,285)
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35. COMPANY INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (Continued)

(@) Financial information of the financial position of the
Company (Continued)

35. DA M BN HwER (&)

(a) AXAHBMRRRZHBER (F)

2020 2019
—EEH —ET-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current liabilities FkRBEME
Unsecured borrowings AR (E X - 3,083,743
Corporate bonds (Note 25) RaElfES (fFaE25) 69,086,340 57,777,109
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,193,245 5,205,101
70,279,585 66,065,953
NET LIABILITIES E8EFE (126,092,088) (95,217,238)
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital (Note 27) A& AR (B 5 27) 22,544,485 22,544,485
Reserves (Note b) bt (MsEb) (148,636,573) (117,761,723)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY B A (126,092,088) (95,217,238)

The statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March
2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Xiao Yanming
H 58
Director

EF
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N
Fa

35. COMPANY INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL 35. AR EMRNH &K (&)
POSITION (Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) DFFHEEE
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
RAEE  EXRERE 2 FR @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT B B B
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—F—H 672,651,012 168,800 (747,022,595) (74,202,783)
Total comprehensive expenses AR ES - - (43,558,940) (43,558,940)
At 31 Decernber 2019 and RZE- jﬁ‘l‘ A=1-"H
1 January 2020 k-Z2-Z%-A-H 672,651,012 168,800 (790,581,535) (117,761,723)
Waiver of amount due to the ultimate & ﬁmfﬂr HEER ek
controlling party - - 3,120,000 3,120,000
Total comprehensive expenses SARTLE - - (33,994,850) (33,994,850)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EE+-B=1-H 672,651,012 168,800 (821,456,385) (148,636,573)

Capital redemption reserves was derived from the Company by
repurchase its own shares pursuant to the approval and shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal of the issued share

capital of the Company within the relevant period.
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36. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

37.

On 23 April 2019, the Company and an independent third party
(“Landlord”) entered into a tenancy agreement, pursuant to which
a property was let to the Company for office use for a term of three
years from 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2022.

On 29 May 2020, the Company received a writ of summons with a
statement of claim issued in the District Court of Hong Kong by the
Landlord against the Company for overdue rent, management fee
and interest during the period from December 2019 to May 2020,
and further claimed the rent and management fee from 1 June 2020
to 31 March 2022 (the end of contract) and rate from 1 July 2020 to
31 March 2022 (the end of contract).

The directors of the Company are of the view that the litigations
have no significant impact on the Group’s financial position and
its operating result for the year ended 31 December 2020 as the
accrued rental and management fee amounts as at 31 December
2020 have already been recorded in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2020.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, Mr. Hu Haisong, Mr. Ding Shiguo and Mr. Gui
Shengyue agreed to waive all the director’s fees and bonus payable
to them of approximately HK$3,120,000 (including approximately
HK$1,400,000 payable as at 31 December 2019), HK$723,000
(including approximately HK$465,000 payable as at 31 December
2019) and HK$390,000 (including approximately HK$210,000
payable as at 31 December 2019).

On 1 August 2020, loans from Ultimate Controlling Party of
approximately HK$12,173,000 was assigned to an independent
third party.

On 31 December 2020, loans from a director — Dr. Xiao Yanming of
HK$3,300,000 was assigned to an independent third party.
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@

On 4 January 2021, a total of 90,140,000 ordinary shares have
been issued at HK$0.28 per share pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement under general mandate.
Net proceeds of approximately HK$24.4 million have been
raised through the placing.

On 15 January 2021,
memorandum of understanding “MOU"

the Company entered into a
for strategic
cooperation with Cornucopiae Asset Management
Limited, pursuant to which, both parties agreed to explore
opportunities for cooperation and investment and, subject
to the terms and conditions of the MOU, to cooperate and
establish a multi-strategy open-ended investment fund.

On 22 January 2021, convertible bonds of an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$50,010,000 are placed
to not less than six placees to subscribe for 166,700,000
conversion shares at the initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per
share. Net proceeds of approximately HK$49.5 million have
been raised through the placing.

On 25 February 2021, a total of 270,520,000 ordinary shares
have been issued at HK$0.33 per placing share pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the placing agreement under general
mandate. Net proceeds of approximately HK$88.4 million have
been raised through the placing.

On 19 March 2021, the Group and one of the Group’s
bondholder entered into a letter of intent whereby the
bondholder expressed intention to subscribe for, and the
Company intended to issue and allot preference shares to
replace the corporate bond due to the bondholder in the
amount of approximately HK$10,000,000.
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Five Years Financial Summary

E=s]
FFEEHE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E_EF —T-NF —T-N\F —T—+F —ETREF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Results EY|
Revenue Y zs - = 660,685 718,333 350,000
Loss before tax BRETAIE R (36,301,591)  (43,673,836)  (53,267,690)  (45,248,621)  (76,815,200)
Income tax expense FEHiRX - - = = =
Loss for the year attributable to AR R H#H AR
owners of the Company FRNEBAE (36,301,591)  (43,673,836)  (53,267,690)  (45248,621)  (76,815,200)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 5,299,924 21,216,977 34,243,078 61,317,384 61,491,807
Total liabilities weE (134,848,953) (117,584,415  (86,936,680)  (60,743,296)  (61,112,862)
Net (liabilities) assets (BE)EEFE (129,549,029)  (96,367,438)  (52,693,602) 574,088 378,945
Share capital RN 22,544,485 22,544,485 22,544,485 22,544,485 20,225,735
Reserves i (152,093,514)  (118,911,923)  (75,238,087)  (21,970,397)  (19,846,790)
(Capital deficiency) total equity (B4 BB HE (129,549,029)  (96,367,438)  (52,693,602) 574,088 378,945
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